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Agenda 2018 - Woodvale Pentecostal Church Corporation (WPCC) 
Sunday, April 8, 2018 

I. Call to Order
a) Establish the voting bar
b) Establish the quorum
c) Approve the Agenda
d) Appointments

i) Recording Secretary – Mary Beyer
ii) Parliamentarian – Ron Walker
iii) Head Teller –  Tom Armour
iv) Head Usher – Basira Bashorum

II. Minutes
a) Annual Business Meeting – April 2, 2017

III. Election of two (2) Board Members

IV. Pastoral and Ministry Reports

V. Financial Report – James King
a) Audited 2017 Financial Report
b) 2018 Budget
c) Appointment of the Auditor for 2018

VI. Adjournment

Notes: 

- Total Members Present: _________________________

- 2017 WPCC Board Members (alphabetically):
- Tim Armour (completed third year of first term)
- Mary Beyer (completed first year of first term)
- Ryan Greer (completed first year of second term)
- James King (completed second year of first term)
- Jeff Lauzon (completed first year of first term)
- Joanna Renwick (completed second year of first term)
- Kelly Rogers (completed third year of second term)

- 2018 WPCC Board Members Elected:
    - 

- 
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Agenda 2018 - Woodvale Pentecostal Church Property Corporation (WPCPC) 
Sunday, April 8, 2018 

I. Call to Order
a) Establish the voting bar
b) Establish the quorum
c) Approve the Agenda
d) Appointments

i) Recording Secretary –  Vonnie Shew
ii) Parliamentarian – Ron Walker

II. Minutes
a) Annual Business Meeting – April 2, 2017

III. Election of Directors

IV. Financial Report – Andrew Paterson
a) Audited 2017 Financial Report
b) 2018 Budget
c) Appointment of the Auditor for 2018

V. Adjournment

Notes: 

 Total Members Present: ________________________

 2017 WPCPC Board Members (alphabetically)
- Ryan Greer
- Craig Hillier
- James King
- Andrew Paterson
- Kelly Rogers
- Vonnie Shew
- Stephen Schyf

 2018 WPCPC Board Members Elected:
-
- 

   - 
- 

   - 
- 

   -  
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Minutes 2017 - Woodvale Pentecostal Church Corporation 
Sunday, April 2, 2017         ----- in the main sanctuary 

A. CALL TO ORDER: Pastor Mark called the meeting to order at 6:00pm and offered the opening prayer.

-ESTABLISH THE VOTING BAR:

MOTION: That the three center sections, the counting room backstage, and the sound booth be declared the voting

bar. M/S carried

-ESTABLISH THE QUORUM: The head count revealed that one hundred and ninety two (192) members were

present. This enabled Pastor Mark to announce that quorum was met. A second count at 6:15pm indicated that the

number had increased to two hundred and forty eight (248).

-APPOINTMENTS: (1) Recording Secretary ….Wes Spencer    (2) Head Teller …..Tom Armour 

(3) Parliamentarian …..Ron Walker       (4) Head Usher ….. Katie Onuekwa 

Pastor Mark announced the above officiators and entertained the following MOTION: That the appointees be 

approved as announced. M/S carried 

-APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:

MOTION: That the agenda for the ABM be approved as presented. M/S carried

B. MINUTES:

MOTION: That the minutes of the April 3, 2016 Annual Business Meeting be approved as presented. M/S carried

C. ELECTION OF THREE (3) BOARD MEMBERS: The following nominees were presented for election: Mary Beyer,

Julius Egbeyemi, Caleb Farley, Ryan Greer, Jeff Lauzon (in absentia) and Olive Musinguzi. It took only the first ballot

to elect Mary Beyer, Jeff Lauzon, and Ryan Greer. Pastor Mark thanked all the candidates for allowing their names to

stand. Newly elected board members were invited to say a few words. Board members for 2017: Tim Armour, Mary

Beyer, Ryan Greer, James King, Jeff Lauzon, Joanna Renwick, and Kelly Rogers.

D. PASTORAL AND MINISTRY REPORTS:     Pastor Mark made reference to the various reports available

electronically and in hard copy. All members and adherents were encouraged to read them if they had not yet done

so. Pastors were given an opportunity to give a brief update of their area of ministry. This proved to be very

interesting and refreshing.

E. FINANCIAL REPORT

- David Gilstorf presented the audited 2016 Financial Report with the aid of brightly colored graphs and charts. The

various giving options were reviewed and special mention was made of stock donations. Recognizing the huge 

potential of WPC to do great exploits for the harvest of souls and the extension of God’s kingdom, Pastor Mark 

invited Board president, Tim Armour, to pray for improvement in obedience and diligence in the area of tithing. 

MOTION: That the 2016 Financial Report be approved as presented. M/S carried 

-Next, David introduced the 2017 Budget, indicating the percentage increase in various areas. In general, the

financial situation has a positive outlook. Fair progress is being made with mortgage reduction and the rate for

renewal looks favourable for 2017.
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  MOTION: That the 2017 budget be approved as presented in the annual report. M/S carried 

-APPOINTMENT OF THE AUDITOR FOR 2017: Notwithstanding the good rapport and service obtained from Collins/

Barrow, a change was recommended.

MOTION: That McCay Duff be appointed as auditor for 2017. M/S carried 

Having completed the financial report, David thanked everyone for the opportunity to serve. In particular, he 

expressed his appreciation to his family for their support during his two terms on the board. Pastor Mark followed up 

by sincerely thanking David for his outstanding and diligent contribution as board member and treasurer. 

F. ADJOURNMENT:

MOTION: That the WPCC Annual business meeting be adjourned. M/S carried

……………………………………………………………………. 

…………………………………………………………………… 

    Pastor Mark Scarr (Chair)       Wesley Spencer (Secretary) 
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Minutes 2017 - Woodvale Pentecostal Church Property Corporation 
April 2, 2017 
 

The Annual Business Meeting (ABM) of the members of Woodvale Pentecostal Church Property Corporation 
(WPCPC) was held at 205 Greenbank Road, Ottawa, Ontario on April 2, 2017. 
 

Call to Order 
Pastor Mark Scarr welcomed members and adherents. 

 

Attendance 
There were 248 members present at 6:55 pm.  The quorum required for voting on the budget and board 
members under our new bylaws enacted in 2014 was met.  The voting bar was established.  There were 8 
adherents present.   
Individual motions were moved, seconded, and carried for the approval of the 2017 AGM agenda and 
appointments: 

 Parliamentarian: Ron Walker 

 Recording Secretary: Geraldine Cusiac 

 Head Teller: Tom Armour 

 Head Usher: Katie Onuekwa 
 

Minutes (Pastor Mark Scarr) 
Minutes of the WPCPC annual business meeting of 2016-04-03 were moved, seconded, and carried. 

 
Election of Directors  

The number of Directors shall be seven (7). Bylaw #3, clause 5.02, states that at least three of the directors of 
WPCPC shall be directors in WPC. The current nominations are: 

 

 From among James King, Joanna Renwick, and Kelly Rogers, three are to be elected, and 

 From among Craig Hillier, Dele Morakinyo, Andrew Paterson, Stephen Schyf, and Vonnie Shew, four 
are to be elected. 

Pastor Mark asked if there was any objection to vote for the three (3) candidates from the WPC board to the 
WPCPC board by acclamation. None was raised. It was motioned, seconded, and carried that the following three 
members of the WPC board be elected by acclamation. 
 

 James King 

 Joanna Renwick 

 Kelly Rogers 
 
A vote to elect four (4) of the nominees to the WPCPC board commenced and the following nominees were 
elected. 
 

 Craig Hillier 

 Vonnie Shew 

 Andrew Paterson 

 Stephen Schyf 
 
Financial Report (Andrew Paterson) 
 

Andrew Paterson presented the financial reports to the membership as printed in the annual report.  
a) Audited 2016 Financial Statements 
b) 2017 Budget 
c) Appointment of McCay Duff as the auditor for 2017.  

 
It was motioned, seconded, and carried to accept the audited 2016 financial statements as printed. 
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It was motioned, seconded, and carried to accept the 2017 budget as printed. 

It was motioned, seconded, and carried to appoint McCay Duff as auditor for WPCPC for fiscal 2017. 

Adjournment 

It was moved, seconded  and carried, to adjourn the meeting. The meeting was adjourned at 7:44 pm 

Geraldine Cusiac 
Secretary, Woodvale Pentecostal Church Property Corporation 
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Lead Pastor’s Report  

Where Are We Going As A Church?  

During 2017 your leadership team began to take an honest evaluation of two things: 
1. Who we are
2. What we do

We are constantly reminding ourselves of WHO we want to be as a church: 
1. Authentic – real people on a real journey serving a real God
2. Relational – connecting people to God, one another and our community
3. Diverse – intergenerational and intercultural

These three words still define WHO we want to be as a church. 

WHAT we do as a church can be described by three words: 
1. Follow – next steps
2. Connect – doing life together
3. Serve - saved to serve

After an honest evaluation, we began to see that the third area “serve” needed to be further developed. We began to 
meet regularly and dialogue about this.  We established a goal … that we become a church where “everybody 
serves”.  
The journey of creating a “culture of serving” began. 

Culture of Serving 
A culture involves a shared set of attitudes, values and goals. 
We identified ten steps to help us build this culture of serving: 

1. Commit to the long haul
2. Assist everyone in understanding the new culture of serving
3. Tap into knowledge people
4. Mold a culture of service
5. Formalize the culture
6. Model the new culture of service
7. Communicate the culture
8. Reinforce the new culture of service
9. Recognize people who embody the new culture
10. Highlight the new culture

We began to realize, that to empower this new culture in our church, it was going to take commitment, persistence 
and time.  Simply because: 

1. What gets pictured gets done
2. What gets modeled gets done
3. What gets praised gets done
4. What gets trained gets done
5. What gets measured gets done
6. What gets budgeted gets done

We began to carve time in our weekly staff meetings to envision how we could lead Woodvale into having a culture of 
serving. 

We tackled some tough questions: 
1. Why do we want to create a culture of serving?
2. What are we currently doing to create this?
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3. Why are some people not serving?
4. What are we doing that works/doesn’t work?
5. Where do we want to be?
6. What steps can we take to get there?
7. What are some tangible goals?
8. What would be a reasonable timeline?
9. Who will be responsible?
10. What about an evaluation process?

Action Steps 
A plan began to formulate: 

1. Pastors and Board read Bill Hybel’s Book “The Volunteer Revolution”
2. Devote Pastoral Team Days Apart & weekly time in staff meeting to discuss this
3. Create a Team of Influencers
4. Meet with Pastors/Board/Spouses to dialogue about this
5. Meet with Pastors/Board/Spouses/Influencers to dialogue about this
6. Have a church wide awareness campaign on “Living Beyond Myself”
7. Preach a two-month sermon series “Revolution” on serving
7. Create a List of Dream Ministries
8. Create a process for ministry volunteering – introduction to Woodvale, Serve 101, gift survey,

volunteer coordinator, etc.
9. Have leadership/volunteers gatherings – prayer, development, vision, appreciation, etc.

The journey to see this unfold continues in 2018.  

Parking Lot Expansion 
As the church has continued to grow we began to realize the need to complete the parking area under the hydro 
corridors. This was in our original plans when we built in 2007.   

1. 200 more parking spots were added this year.
2. The entire project cost is approximately $750,000.
3. We are on track to pay this entirely off in 2018, if we can together raise another $200,000.

Thank you for your ongoing giving towards this. You can give by designating Parking Lot. 

What Do I Do Around Here  
As the Lead Pastor at Woodvale I focus my time and energy to provide overall leadership, care, vision and direction 
for the church.  I serve as the main preaching communicator, lead the church board and pastoral team and offer 
oversight to a number of ministries including - prayer ministries, missions, men’s ministries, women’s ministries 
(directly accountable to my wife Evelyn), seniors and pastoral care.  

Here are some highlights from 2017 and areas that I oversee … 

The Pastoral, Office and Custodial Staff 

Current Pastoral Team  
Rev. Shelley Good  (Children’s Ministries) since September 2002 
Pastor Kimberley Malloy (Early Childhood Ministries – part time) since October 2014 
Pastor Brad Mosley (Worship Ministries) since March 2014 
Rev. Joe Nyenhuis (Executive Pastor) since July 1999 
Pastor Kyle Rowsell (Associate Student Ministries Pastor) since May 2016 
Rev. Mark Scarr (Lead Pastor) since January 2001 
Rev. Matt Schmid (Lead Student Ministries Pastor) since September 2014  
Rev. Marvin Sinclair (Spiritual Growth & Connections Pastor) since September 2005  
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Office Staff 
Jon Fish (Finance Office) since May 2016 
Carol Ann Stagg (Office Administrator) since August 2003 
Tricia Millar (Administrative Assistant) since March 2015 
 

* Special thanks to Gayle Freeburn who has often “filled in” at our church office  
 

Resignation of Helen Lewis 
Helen served as an Administrative Assistant (part time) since February 2013.  She concluded her duties early 
December 2017 as she and her husband Greg moved back to their home province of British Columbia. 
 

Future Office Staff 
We are in a process of evaluating our current needs and will be proceeding forward in 2018 with adding another 
person to our team.  
 

Custodial Team 
Estera Dragan (Custodial – full time contract) since March 1988.  
Suresh Kaileswaran (Security/Set up – part time/contract) since November 2002.  
Joel Girard (Security/Set up – part time/contract) since August 2014.  
 

Summer Shake & After School Program Staff 
Pastor Shelley includes this in her report  
 

Weekly Staff Meetings 
Every Tuesday morning from 9 -11 am, your pastoral team meets for prayer, planning, vision sharing, and leadership 
development.  
 
Master’s College & Seminary (MCS)  
Woodvale continues to strongly support our Bible College – which is located in Peterborough, Ontario. We have a 
number of congregants who either attend MCS as a full time student or are taking courses part time (on line).  
A former Youth Pastor from Woodvale (Rich Janes) serves as the President. 
 

Corporation Boards 
 

Woodvale Pentecostal Church Corporation (WPCC) 
Tim Armour (President & HR) - completes 3rd year of first term 
Mary Beyer (Secretary) – completes 1st year of first term 
Ryan Greer  (Property)– completes 2nd year of first term 
James King (Treasurer) – completes 2nd year of first term 
Jeff Lauzon (HR) – completes 1st year of first term 
Joanna Renwick (Policies) – completes 2nd year of first term.    
Kelly Rogers (Property/HR) – completes 3rd year of second term 
 
Woodvale Pentecostal Church Property Corporation (WPCPC) 
Ryan Greet (Member at Large) 
Craig Hillier (Member at Large) 
James King (Member at Large)  
Andrew Paterson (Treasurer) 
Kelly Rogers (Member at Large) 
Vonnie Shew (Secretary) 
Stephen Schyf (President) 
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Woodvale Pentecostal Church Construction Corporation (WPCCC) 
Tim Armour (Member at Large) 
Mary Beyer (Member at Large) 
Ryan Greer (Secretary) 
James King (Treasurer) 
Jeff Lauzon (Member at Large) 
Joanna Renwick (Member at Large)  
Kelly Rogers (President) 

 
Sunday Sermons – 2017 
 

Reset (4 messages) 
Pillars (4 messages) 
Not Just Aquarium Keepers (1 message) 
Are You Talking To Me? (1 message) 
The Battlefield of the Mind (1 message) 
Seeing With The Eyes of Faith  (1 message) 
A Harvest Time Mentality (1 message) 
How To Worship Jesus (1 message) 
Good Friday – The Perspective of the Centurion (1 message)  
Easter Sunday – Trust Me (1 message) 
Extra-Ordinary (3 messages) 
Mother’s Day - Fight Like A Girl (1 message) 
God of the Valley (1 message) 
The Valley of Renewal (1 message) 
Generational Outpouring (1 message) 
Improving Your Serve (1 message) 
Our Final Exam (1 message) 
Father’s Day - The Father’s Love (1 message) 
Canada Day (1 message) 
Written In Stone (10 messages) 
Conversations With Jesus (5 messages) 
Thrive (6 messages) 
Missions Sunday (1 message) 
All I Want 4 Christmas (4 messages) 
Christmas Eve – The Way In A Manger (1 message) 
New Year’s Eve (1 message) 
 

I am most grateful to Gayle Freeburn who faithfully puts the weekly Sunday sermon outline on our church website.  
 
Midweek @ Woodvale (Wednesday evenings) 
 

Alpha (led by Lakshmi Rutnam) 
Boost Junior High (led by Pastor Matt) 
Follow New Believers Class (led by Jeff Lauzon) 
Zoom (led by Pastor Shelley) 
Membership Class (led by Pastor Joe) 
Solo Moms (led by Latona Nicholson) 
Worship Choir (led by Joanna Renwick & Nolda Lawrence)  
Worship Practice (led by Pastor Brad) 
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Leadership & Volunteers Visionary Gatherings  
 

Every year we host two gatherings - January and September.  
 
Pastoral Care 
 

Pastoral Care is one of my ministry passions. It is an honour for me to offer oversight for hospital and shut-in 
visitation. Other pastoral team members assist me with this. Special thanks goes to Lloyd Eyamie, who visits our 
congregants who are in senior’s homes.  
Each member of your pastoral team is available to meet with you for support, prayer and advice.  
From time to time we have referred congregational members to local professional Christian counseling.   
 
Prayer Ministries 
 

Pre-Service Prayer: Sundays @ 8:30 – 11:00 am – Room 306 (led by Omo Osawe)  
Prayer Ministry Drop-In:  Thursdays @ 7:15 – 9:15 am – Fireside Room (led by Brian Jones) 
Prayer For Canada: Tuesdays @ 7:00 pm – Meeting Room (led by Glen Humphreys)   
Sunday Altar Workers  (led by Omo Osawe) 
Weekly Prayer Brochure  (led by Carol Ann Stagg) 
Monthly Sunday Evening Prayer “All Church” Gathering  (led by Pastor Mark) 
Missionary Prayer Focus  (placed weekly in our church bulletin) 
Fasting & Prayer: “21 Days With Jesus” – Fasting & Prayer (during the month of January)  
 
Men’s Ministry 
 

Special thanks to Rob Runolfson for his amazing leadership this past year. Along with his team they hosted quarterly 
Saturday morning breakfasts. 
 

Thank you to Stephen Tom for organizing our annual men’s golf day. 
 

James King is now offering leadership along with his team – Kelly Hart & Robin Ramrup. 
In February of 2017 Woodvale was blessed to host a Promise Keeper’s Conference.   
 
Missions Committee 
 

Another passion of mine is missions.  I am so privileged to serve on this committee. 
Our current mission’s committee is as follows: Anthony Campbell (Chair), Sergei Bantseev, Hellen Gwayumba, Tricia 
Millar, Tanya Pollard, Charity Scheel and Pastor Marvin Sinclair. The committee meets monthly and helps facilitate 
missions at Woodvale. 
 

This year our special project included raising funds for Deborah Sirjoosingh and her work in Turkana, Kenya. 
 

Colombia Missions Trip 
In the summer of 2017, I was honoured to go to Colombia with a mission’s team from Woodvale. Along with helping 
to build a church I had the privilege of speaking in numerous churches there.  
 

Missions and Community Giving for 2017 
In 2017 Woodvale ranked among the Top 10 giving churches to P.A.O.C. Global Missions. 
 

Below is a listing of where we gave … 
Around The World 
- Abrams, Bonita (Cuba) - P.A.O.C. 
- Anthony, Cal – P.A.O.C.  
- Armitage, Sheldon and Anna (Slovakia) – P.A.O.C. 
- Bantseev, Ilya and Janet  (Siberia) – P.A.O.C.                              
- Bowler, Phil and Judy  (Senegal) - P.A.O.C.  
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- Bowler, Steve & Kathy (Malawi) – P.A.O.C. 
- Bridges for Peace – (Israel)                                                                                                            
- Bush, Marilyn (Kenya) – P.A.O.C.   
- Cetrulo, Alejandro & Mercedes (Costa Rica) – P.A.O.C.  
- Child Care Plus – P.A.O.C.  
- Compassion Canada 
- Duggan, Jamie & Misty (Kenya) – P.A.O.C. 
- Duncalfe, Linda (Kenya) – P.A.O.C. 
- E.R.D.O. - P.A.O.C.                                                                 
- Iacob, Jennifer & Raz (Romania) – P.A.O.C.   
- Wayne & Ann Hilsden -King of Kings (Israel) – P.A.O.C. 
- Kohls, Paul and Lynn (Kenya) – P.A.O.C.  
- Laing, Gary & Bev (Cambodia) – P.A.O.C. 
- McCrea, Darren & Patty (Colombia) – P.A.O.C.  
- Moran, Javier & Stephanie (El Savador) – P.A.O.C. 
- Oram, Peter (Haiti) – P.A.O.C.  
- Orr, Mark and Cherilyn (Uganda) – International Teams  
- P.A.O.C. Missions (where most needed) 
- Samaritan Purse – Christmas shoebox outreach    
- Sirjoosingh, Deborah (Kenya) – P.A.O.C.                                
- Smith, Tim and Sandra (Indonesia) - Missions Aviation Fellowship 
- Van Belle, John and Audrey (El Savador) – P.A.O.C.  
- 6 Global Workers in Restricted Access Nations (RAN) 
 

In Canada  
- Artic Hope 
- Aboriginal Bible Academy – P.A.O.C. 
- Arsenault, Paul and Kyla  – Wycliffe Bible Translators 
- Canada Food Grain Banks – ERDO – P.A.O.C.  
- Eastern Ontario District Office (P.A.O.C.)  
- Evangelical Fellowship of Canada  
- Institute Biblique du Quebec – P.A.O.C. 
- Masters College & Seminary – P.A.O.C.  
- Pioneers Canada  
- Ottawa Valley Pentecostal Camp – P.A.O.C.   
- World Vision   
 

In Ottawa  
- Alkoury Family (from Syria) 
- Capital City Mission  
- Children’s Hospital of Eastern Ontario (CHEO) 
- C.H.R.I. 
- City Kidz Ottawa 
- First Place Maternal Health Options  
- Living Waters Christian Assembly – P.A.O.C.  
- Morrison Gardens  
- One Way Ministries (Big Give) 
- Ottawa Innercity Ministries (O.I.M.)  
- Ottawa Civic Prayer Breakfast  
- Restoring Hope Ministries (Jason Pino) 
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Living Waters Christian Assembly 
 

Just before Christmas 2017,  a local P.A.O.C. church (Living Waters Christian Assembly) experienced a tragedy as 
their building burned to the ground. We were honoured to take up a special offering for them on Christmas Eve. They 
currently hold their Sunday Worship Service and Tuesday Prayer Gathering in our Ministry Centre. Please pray for 
them as they navigate through their next steps. 
 

Seniors (50+) – Mature Vibrant People 
 

I am most grateful for Gayle Freeburn and her capable team: Ruth Brathwaite, Harold Freeburn, Mary Hancock, 
Gloria Lauber, Barry & Claire Rivers and Marilyn Spencer. Pastor Joe and I have served as pastoral liaisons to this 
committee.  
Our 50+ group meets twice a year for various planned events.  
Our 50+ Infusion Bible Study group, led by Marilyn Spencer, meets every other Tuesday afternoon at Woodvale.  
Thank you to Ed and Lise Hunter who oversee the weekly sandwiches made for Capital City Mission.  
 
Women’s Ministries  
 

My wife (Evelyn Scarr) serves as the pastoral liaison for Women’s Ministries at Woodvale.  Thank you to our great 
leaders and team - Alison Sinclair & Laurie Michaud, (Co-Leaders), Rikki Mosley, Diane Mubamba, Esther Sinclair, 
Evelyn Scarr. 
Our Women’s Ministries hosts quarterly events and raises significant funds to help support various mission 
outreaches.   
 

2017 Community Connection Highlights 
 

Easter Sunday – “Trust Me” (April)  
The Big Give (June) 
Police Appreciation BBQ  (June)  
Morrison Gardens Backpack Outreach (September) 
Day of Blessing - Christmas Hampers (December)  
Christmas Eve – “The Way In A Manger”  
 
Serving On Committees 
 

The Big Give Committee 
I am privileged to serve on “The Big Give” Leadership Team.  We meet often throughout the year to help facilitate 
The Big Give across Canada. 
 

District Executive 
I am also privileged to serve on the Eastern Ontario P.A.O.C. District Executive (as a member at large).  We meet 
three or four times throughout the year at our district office in Cobourg. 
 
Conferences 
 

In the spring of 2017, Evelyn and I were honoured to attend our district conference in Huntsville, Ontario. 
 

In the spring of 2018, we will be attending our P.A.O.C. General Conference in Victoria, British Colombia.  
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Statistics from 2017 
38 Water Baptisms 
11 Funerals 
12 weddings 
22 baby dedications 
67 new members welcomed  
Many salvations/recommitments 
Many baptized in the Holy Spirit 
12 communion services  
 
Closing Words   
I was raised in a Christian home and attended Calvary Pentecostal Church in Cambridge, Ontario with my family. 
 

Both Evelyn and I are graduates of Eastern Pentecostal Bible College, Peterborough, Ontario.  It is now called 
Masters College & Seminary. 
 

1985 … graduated from Bible College 
1985 … credential with the Pentecostal Assemblies of Canada 
1987 … after the required two years of full time ministry was Ordained 
1985-1990 … Assistant Pastor at Bethel Pentecostal Church (Goderich, Ontario) 
1990-1994 … Assistant Pastor at Lakeshore Evangelical Church (Montreal, Quebec) 
1994-1996 … Associate Pastor at Liberty Pentecostal Church (Bowmanville, Ontario) 
1996-2000 … Lead Pastor at Liberty Pentecostal Church (Bowmanville, Ontario) 
2001-Present … Lead Pastor at Woodvale Pentecostal Church (Ottawa, Ontario) 
 

17 of the 33 years of full time ministry have been here at Woodvale. Words cannot even begin to express our deep 
love and commitment to each one of you. I never could have dreamt how powerful and fruitful longevity in ministry 
could be.  
 

Our son Jonathan, his wife Kayla, and our two granddaughters (Norah-Lane and Elsie Grace) are actively involved at 
Woodvale. 
Our daughter Jennifer currently is teaching in the elementary school system and is actively involved at Woodvale. 
Jessica is in her final year at Masters College and Seminary. 
Evelyn and I celebrate 32 years married this coming May. 
We are filled with vision and anticipation for all that God is going to do in 2018.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Rev. Mark A. Scarr 
Lead Pastor 
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Worship Ministry Report  
 
I can quite confidently say that this past year at Woodvale has been the most exciting, passionate and encouraging 
year that Rikki and I have been a part of yet! Many have come to Jesus, we have reports of people being healed and 
it is so apparent that God is up to something new and fresh here among us.  
 

Rikki and I have never felt more at home in a church. It’s been almost 4 years for us and the kids here at Woodvale, 
but I can still so confidently say that it still feels like day one for us. The excitement and joy that I feel coming into the 
office ever day confirms to me that this is exactly where God wants us. Our kids absolutely love coming to church 
and we can barely get them back in the car when it’s time to go. As parents and pastors, that’s a pretty awesome 
thing!  
 

Most people have no idea of all that it takes to make sure that every week happens and that it happens well. The 
amount of preparation, organization, set up, scheduling and planning that is needed could never be done by one 
person. It takes a lot of wonderful people to make it all happen! There is a very committed team of over 90 people 
that serve throughout each month that help our church reach this city for Christ. And that’s just for the ministries that I 
oversee.  
 

Most of my teams are at the church by 7:30am on Sunday mornings. Some of them have to travel a long way to get 
to church, but they are up before 6:00am, travel through the snow and show up with a smile, ready to do their part 
and lead people to Jesus. It can be a long day as they don’t leave till close to 1:00pm, but I can tell you first hand that 
the heart of this team is pure gold!! Our volunteers understand what it means to ‘serve others (1 Peter 4:10). No one 
is here for themselves or to showcase their talents or giftings. Our church is full of people that understand that church 
is not about them or for them, but we are here to serve and see the lost return to Christ. It is such a privilege to work 
with such an amazing group of servants and leaders. We truly have the best team in the world!! 
 

Our Worship Choir continues to be a vital component in our worship services. The energy and heart of worship that 
each of them bring is so powerful! I like to call them the Worship Army :) There are over 30 volunteers that make up 
our Worship Choir and they add so much to our services! I want to thank them for all the hard work and many hours 
that they put in to help our worship reach heaven. And trust me, they serve a lot! Joanna Renwick and Nolda 
Lawrence have once again taken the lead for our choir and I am so incredibly thankful for them!!  
 

Our worship teams at Alpha have continued to move forward. We have been using members from our Sunday 
worship teams to lead the worship for our Alpha program. It has been amazing! Many people that sign up for Alpha 
have never been in a worship environment and most haven’t even received salvation yet. It’s been such an honour to 
be a part of and truly lead and teach these new believers what worship is and how powerful it can be! Thank you to 
all of you who have helped grow this ministry and the lives of the people that attend. 
 

Our Live Stream has taken some huge steps forward this past year! We have invested in some much needed new 
video gear that has allowed us to now shoot in HD. Ryan Greer and his wife April, along with others, spent a lot of 
time researching, studying and eventually setting up our new system. And I mean A LOT of time! I personally and 
publicly want to thank them for all they put into this project this past year. You guys did an amazing job!! Our Live 
Stream continues to grow and has quickly become a very important part of our church. There are hundreds of hits 
each and every Sunday! There have been some very cool stories of people that constantly watch and rely on our 
stream for their Sunday worship and teachings. There is a church in Quebec that streams us every Sunday! They 
have their own worship time and then stream into our service for Pastor Mark’s message. There is also a family down 
in California that gets up at 6:00am every Sunday so they can tune in and be part of Woodvale’s service! Throughout 
the summer, many church members up at Ottawa Valley Camp tune in. When people from our congregation are 
away on business or vacation, they are watching. Also those who are sick or unable to make it out to church each 
week are able to go online and stream our service! Live Streaming has proven to have a very big impact on many, 
many people and we thank the Lord for the technology and also for the amazing volunteers that not only have set it 
all up and keep it working, but also to our very large video team that serves every Sunday on cameras, producing, 
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and projection. There is a lot that has to happen every week in order for it all to run smoothly and it’s all done by 
some amazing and committed volunteers! So thank you to all of you! 
 

One of the most thankless roles in church is running the soundboard. We have a very large demographic of young 
and old as well as people from different cultures and backgrounds. It is of course impossible to please everyone with 
our sound styles and levels but our fearless sound technicians are up there every week, using their gifts to glorify 
God and bring clarity and energy to our service. Gord Millar, Ernst den Broeder and Ryan Greer are our main sound 
technicians, along with Chandra Hasa and Vonnie Shew. They all choose to continue to serve and do it with a great 
heart and attitude! I cannot thank them enough and I encourage anyone who is reading this to make a point to go up 
to them and let them know how good of a job they are doing! We could not have service without them and I am so 
very thankful for all of them. 
 

Our lighting department and the volunteers that serve there are literally some of the best I’ve ever worked with! I’m 
sure you have all noticed throughout Easter, Christmas and each and every Sunday, that our lighting ministry is top 
notch! Our Christmas Eve service this year was a great reminder of that. Our lighting brought so much to the night 
and helped create such an amazing atmosphere and professionalism and every Sunday is the same way. Lighting 
has become a very big part of helping people engage in worship and create an atmosphere of intimacy while we look 
to God and bring Him praise. We are so thankful for the amazing team that we have! 
 

I have been around many musicians, worship teams and leaders over the years and I can honestly say that the heart 
of our worship team is something many worship pastors long for. The commitment, the excellence, the positive 
attitudes, the hours put in: it’s amazing. Week after week, our team shows up with the sole purpose to lead our 
church into the throne room of God. They practice and prepare many hours to make sure they are ready for Sunday. 
They bring excellence to every service, not to show their talent, but the desire is to get out of the way and let God 
shine! I am honoured to be able to lead worship with the team here at Woodvale. Every week, I am in awe that God 
allows us to freely lead our wonderful church in worship and I could not do it without the team that God has blessed 
us with. 
 

Last but not least is all of you, the body of Christ that make up Woodvale Church. Thank you to all of you that have 
accepted me as your pastor. I know I’m never going to please everyone’s style, taste in music, sound level or 
whatever else the enemy will try and use to stop us, but my continued prayer for our church is this: that we will come 
closer to the heart of God every time that we gather to worship and that we will all learn to worship God with 
everything that we have at every moment. As we come together each Sunday, I pray that you don’t need the worship 
team or myself to lead you, that you yourself can’t help but get lost in His presence, lifting up your own song and 
heart to give him the glory and honour that He deserves! That is my prayer. 
 

I am so thankful for all that God has done this past year here at Woodvale. And He did so much! But I know the best 
is still yet to come and I am believing our best year yet will be in  2018! Please join us as we pursue the heart of God 
and His vision for us. If you’re not in a Connect group yet, I encourage you to join one. If you’re not yet serving, trust 
me, you’re missing out!  
 
Love you all so much! God bless you.  
 
Love, Pastor Brad, Rikki, Scout, Scarlett and Honour 
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Children’s Ministry Report (Elementary School Age) 
 
“We have this hope as an anchor for the soul, firm and secure.” Hebrews 6:19 
 

I have beautiful memories of boat trips with my Uncle Jim.  He had a little open motorboat, and he would take us out 
with him for rides when we would visit his cottage in the summer.  If it was a good day and the weather was right, he 
would let us fish for cod off the side of the boat.  My mind is full of memories of dancing around big codfish as they 
flopped around at my feet.  Uncle Jim would always have a way of finding where the fish would be, even without the 
technology of a modern fish finder.  He would pull up in the right spot and drop his anchor, because he knew that if 
we weren’t anchored to that spot we would quickly drift away from where we should be. 
 

When I think about the kids that we serve at Woodvale, I think about Uncle Jim’s anchor.  As our children go about 
their world playing, engaging with others, learning and taking in all the messages around them, they are put at great 
risk of drifting from the faith.  What will provide an anchor for them?  We, as a Children’s Ministry team, work to 
provide a spiritual anchor for our kids, so that as they grow and life pulls them in all directions, they will have a 
strong faith and the hope of who they are in Christ – an anchor to which they can be secured. 
 

As we reflect on this past year at WOWkids Ministries, we are grateful for the many ways that we have been able to 
provide a spiritual anchor for our kids.  Here is a quick snapshot of what we were up to this past year.   
 
EARLY CHILDHOOD MINISTRIES 
 

As always, I am so grateful for the friendship and support of Pastor Kimberley Malloy, our Early Childhood Ministries 
Pastor.  For a full report on Early Childhood Ministries, please see Pastor Kimberley’s report. 
 

WOWkids (Sunday Mornings) 
 

Last year, we averaged 220 children on Sunday mornings in our various ministries.  That’s a huge responsibility – 
one that we do not take lightly.  WOWkids is our ministry to children who are in Grades 1 – 5, and it takes place in the 
Ministry Centre.  Children start the morning with vibrant worship, silly games and a lesson time.  Currently we are 
following “252 Basics”, which features engaging  
multi-media lessons that focus on three main truths: 
 

I need to make the wise choice. 
I can trust God no matter what. 

I should treat others the way I want to be treated. 
 

Following large-group time, children move to their Grade-level Small Groups where they engage in activities and 
crafts that are designed to connect children to each other and to further reinforce the lesson point.  We engage as 
well with parents through the week in providing take-home devotions, e-mails and social media updates, in an effort 
to support them as the primary spiritual influences on their children. 
 

On any given Sunday, the hallways, classrooms and auditoriums look like an ant hill full of team members coming 
and going as they serve the children.  We are grateful for all of our team members who give so much of themselves 
to what they do each week at WOWkids. 
 

Zoom (Wednesday Evenings) 
 

Our Wednesday evening ministry runs from September through to the end of April, and averaged 112 children per 
week last year.  Zoom is a faster-paced, engaging ministry that focuses on children making connections.  We want 
them to connect – to anchor to Jesus, to His Word and to each other so that they can build a strong relationship as 
followers of Christ.   
 

This past calendar year we tweaked this ministry a little to rethink how we crafted our small groups.  We have 
designed them so that children can choose particular interest groups where they can learn new skills and make 
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connections.  Some examples of our groups are Builders Club, Painting, Crafts, and Dance.  We are grateful for the 
highly-skilled and committed team that we have at Zoom, who give so much of their energy, creativity and skill to this 
ministry. 
 

VBS WEEKEND OUTREACH – “Camp Out” 
 

This past year we had a blast at our VBS (Very Big Spectacular) Weekend on September 29-30th.  This year’s theme 
was “Camp Out” and we had so much fun turning the church into a campsite!  We had 194 kids registered for this 
event that focused on the simple message of the Gospel.  On that weekend 19 children gave their lives to Christ!  
Many thanks to everyone who gave their time to see kids won to Christ! 
 
SUMMER SHAKE DAY CAMP 
 

This past summer was our 19th season of Summer Shake, and what a success it was!  We had 246 children 
registered this year, with a majority of them coming to us from outside our church family.  This summer’s team was 
led by Patrick Romain, our SSDC Director, with Fontana Donnelly as our Assistant Director.  This summer we 
employed a team of 10 people who made our slogan “The Summer of a Lifetime” a reality!  We are grateful for all the 
energy and creativity they put into creating a safe and fun summer for kids in our community, and we look forward to 
our 20th Anniversary in 2018! 
 

TEAM SHOUT-OUT 
 

In Luke 9:48 Jesus was talking to His disciples about humility.  He said, “Whoever welcomes a little child in my 
name welcomes me…”   We are blessed at WOWkids to have a group of people who roll out the red carpet each 
week for our kids, providing a welcoming and loving environment for them.  Every time you welcomed a little one, you 
welcomed the presence of Jesus to Woodvale! 
 

I would like to express my sincere love and appreciation to our one-of-a-kind, talented, knowledgeable and dedicated 
team of Children’s Ministry leaders.  We are so blessed to have a top-notch team of people working to anchor our 
kids in Christ.  Although I cannot mention all of you by name, I would like to thank you for all you do to bless our kids. 
 

Finally, I would like to thank all of the parents who entrust their most prized treasure to us each week.  We are 
continuing in our efforts to support you as the primary spiritual leaders for your children. 
 

We look forward to what God is going to do in this coming year in the lives of our kids. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

Shelley Good, 
Pastor of Children’s Ministries 
  

Woodvale Pentecostal Church Annual Report 2017 19



 

Children’s Ministry Report (Early Childhood & Preschool) 
 
“I am reminded of your sincere faith, which first lived in your grandmother, Lois and in your mother, 
Eunice and, I am persuaded, now lives in you also. For this reason I remind you to fan into flame the gift of 
God, which is in you through the laying on of my hands.”  2 Timothy 1:5-6 
 

It is a wonderful experience every Sunday morning to see the busy halls of our church bustle with children heading 
off to their children’s ministry class. I have the privilege to watch parents, grandparents, aunts, uncles and even older 
siblings participate in the spiritual discipline of bringing children to church. They are planting the seeds of sincere faith 
in future generations. 
 

The Early Childhood Ministry classes are always hopping with excitement and our attendance is growing. We’ve 
seen an increase at our 9am service. The wonderful team who serves in DiscoveryLand, Preschool Station and 
WOWkidsJunior are a healthy and vibrant group that I am very thankful to have! They live out their faith by serving 
our youngest members. They are “fanning the flame” and using the gifts God has given them to pour into the lives of 
the children they serve. 
 

Preschool: Zoom 
 

On Wednesday evenings, we spent the fall “walking through the Bible”. We learned about the amazing heroes of the 
Bible. We always try and make teachable moments through games, story, songs and even snack time! 
 

Early Childhood Ministries - Sunday Mornings & VBS 
 

We’ve welcomed new faces to our serving team, as well as to our classes. It’s so encouraging to be meeting V.I.P’s 
every Sunday! We’re thankful for these precious gifts that visit us. Children’s ministry is an amazing area to serve.  
 

We have really enjoyed the use of our multimedia additions in our classes. It has allowed us to enhance our worship 
and story time. We want to continue to serve with excellence while engaging our children in God’s word.  
 

In the fall, we ran a weekend VBS called “Camp Out”. It was a great event that was filled with fun & faith. Our VBS 
events are always a great opportunity to enrich and encourage our regular kids in their faith, but also a great time to 
invite friends, so they can also hear and be introduced to Jesus. 
 
Pastor Kimberley 
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Student Ministries Report - BOOST Jr. High (Gr. 6-8) / STRIVE Young Adults  
 
Boost Jr. High (Gr. 6-8)  
What an action packed, life changing year it has been for us at Boost! We have really enjoyed meeting together, and 
have been thrilled to see students connect both with God and each other on a deeper level.  The great thing about Jr. 
High ministry is that it is always changing! We have met for various types of events this past year, including: worship 
services, scavenger hunts, wild games nights, retreats, and small group parties. It is always a joy to see our students 
excited to invite their friends from school to their church.  Jr. Highs, in my opinion, are the most courageous age 
group, when it comes to living out their faith. It is truly amazing to see these students function courageously, while 
channeling their passion for their church!  
 

One of the most exciting parts of our Boost Ministry is definitely our Encounter moments. These are our worship and 
teaching moments, designed in a way that engages the middle school demographic. Although many are of the 
opinion that Jr. Highs are not quite ready for meaningful service times, at BOOST, we’ve pushed the limit and invited 
God’s presence to join us, and we have seen amazing moments from it!   Our Jr. Highs met up for engaging times of 
worship, moments of prayer from leaders, and interactive discussions in connect groups.  Our teaching segments 
covered a wide spread of topics and themes, including pursuing God, holiness, identity in Christ, sharing our faith, 
and wise decision making.  In September, we launched a theme for the scholastic year called “Rooted”, based on the 
parable of the sower and seed in Matthew 13. It is better described in Jeremiah 17:8:  
 

They are like trees planted along a riverbank, with roots that reach deep into the water. 
Such trees are not bothered by the heat or worried by long months of drought. 

Their leaves stay green, and they never stop producing fruit. 
 
During the 2017/18 school year, we are challenging our students to look for ways to root themselves in Christ— to 
develop a deeper faith and understanding of what they believe, and to establish a deep relationship with God.  We 
truly believe that they will be unshakeable, when it comes to walking in God’s promises.  One of the things that 
excites me the most, about our BOOST service times, is definitely the way the student leaders (high school students) 
get involved within our Jr. High ministry. They have taken on leadership roles that have stretched them greatly. 
Whether it is assisting with evening security, leading worship, preaching a sermon, leading a small group or 
administrating an event, our student leadership team has developed amazing skills that will definitely come in handy 
one day! Additionally, the Jr. Highs have been inspired to become leaders one day too, through watching the student 
leaders.    
 

Our major event in the fall was definitely our retreat to Joy Bible Camp in October.  This was an incredible opportunity 
for our students to build relationships with each other, while connecting with God on a deeper level. Our theme for 
the weekend was “Rooted” and we were looking to see our students grab hold of this theme. Our guest speaker, 
Adam Gillfiilan, challenged them to live a life in deep connection with Jesus, and to bear fruit in all they do. We love 
doing retreats with the Woodvale students. Hearing all of the personal testimonies of what the weekend meant to 
them, reminds us why we do them each year. 
 

The annual trip to Kingston for our Jr. High Convention was an incredible weekend, where we jammed 2 buses full of 
77 Jr. Highs and 18 leaders! During this event, our students made great memories at the hotel, but more importantly, 
seemed to actively engage in our service times. The theme for the weekend was, “QUENCH”, where we presented 
the fullness of what Jesus can do in the lives of our students. What an incredible response from the weekend!  
 

Another foundational moment for our students was our Jr. High camp at Ottawa Valley Pentecostal Camp. It is a 
great joy to see over 30 of our Woodvale Jr. Highs attend for a week in July.  I strongly believe in the contributions 
that summer camps make in the spiritual formation of students. I am excited to report that the week of Jr. High Camp 
greatly impacted our students! 
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When I think about all that has happened at BOOST Jr. High over the past twelve months, I am overwhelmed with 
gratitude for the leaders involved in this ministry.  Our Sr. High and Young Adult leaders have done a stellar job at 
committing not only their time and efforts, but also their hearts to this ministry.  I am encouraged, as I sit in our 
monthly Sunday afternoon meetings while the leaders share their dreams and their testimonies from BOOST. I 
witness their willingness to serve, as they extend the grace of God, which has permeated their personal lives.  This 
ministry would not even be close to what it is today, if it was not built on the foundation of a team that is functioning in 
unity and valuing each individual’s gifts. As the leaders continue to spur them on through personal acts of obedience 
to God, I look forward to seeing our Jr. Highs follow in their footsteps.   
 
Strive Young Adults (18-25) 
This past year has been very rewarding, as Pastor Kyle and I have worked closely with the young adults in our 
church. This is a group of individuals who are finding their personal identity as they enter adulthood, through 
vocation, independence, and often settling into a new geographical setting. As they make these adjustments, it is 
great to see them find their place in the Christian community at Woodvale. Often young adult years can be a time 
when life gets busy and scattered, to the point where faith and direction can be put on hold. At Strive, we have made 
it our priority to recognize what matters most in the Kingdom of God, and to relentlessly pursue it!  
 

The year of 2017 definitely proved to be a fruitful one in reference to a passion for the things of God. We started the 
year off with a Winter Retreat out at beautiful Mt. Tremblant.  Away on the mountain, we had amazing connections 
with each other, and more memorably, some of the most powerful times in God’s presence we’ve ever experienced.  
From the retreat onwards, we’ve seen the spiritual climate at our young adults’ gatherings increase in great passion, 
expectancy, and power.  It has been amazing to see our young adults come alive in their faith! 
 

It has been incredible to see our students engage in our monthly worship services. These moments have created a 
space for students to connect with God during a dedicated time, while engaging in interactive teaching. We spent a 
good amount of time throughout the year teaching on the importance of the baptism of the Holy Spirit, and how vital 
of a role it plays in living out the Gospel. It was very encouraging to see our  students take a fresh look at what spirit- 
filled living means and how to pursue it wholeheartedly. 
 

Our connect groups at Strive have been going great as well.  Having connect groups meet every other Thursday 
night has maximized our gatherings.  Our connect groups have grown in many different areas. One group split into 
two connect groups because of its size.  It has been great to see our groups planning socials together, doing home 
Bible studies, and engaging in serve initiatives! I am so thrilled to see our young adults connecting, not only with the 
vision of strive, but also with the vision of Woodvale as a whole. It is wonderful to be a part of a church that is 
connected throughout the generations, and I am excited to see the results of this several years down the road!  
 

Another highlight of 2017 was definitely seeing our young adults actively engage in serving on Sunday mornings. 
Whether it is through hospitality, production, worship, student ministries or care: I can confidently say that a 
significant majority of our students are actively serving in our church.   
 

We had many great moments as a group this past year, including: beach nights, day retreats, cafe nights and 
barbecues.  It has been great to see our young adults take ownership of these events and make them a success.  
 

Another very special part of what we do through our young adult ministry is our Sunday Lunch program, led by 
Stephen and Renee Shew. The goal of these monthly lunches is to create a space for young adults to connect, meet 
new people, and have a free meal.  It has been amazing to see how many students have come out to these lunches, 
and how it has served as an opportunity to integrate new people into the ministry.  Pastor Kyle and I have really 
valued the willingness of many families to create a space for these students, who often don’t have family in the city.  
It has been amazing to see the impact that the many host homes have made on the students, as they experience 
hospitality and mentorship through these moments.  I would like to express my gratitude to Stephen and Renee for 
coordinating all of these lunches, and to all the hosts for their hospitality and generosity to give so much to these 
students.   
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When I look back at 2017, I am so grateful for all that we have experienced, and I am so grateful for our leadership 
team, which is a blend of young adults and “adult mentors”.  It has been incredible to have their support and insight 
over the course of the year, and I am happy to report that our team is healthy and full of vision for what Strive can 
look like in the future.   
We truly believe that we are just getting started with all that God has in store for the young adults in Ottawa!  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Pastor Matt Schmid  
Student Ministries Pastor 
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Associate Student Ministries Report - INTENCITY Youth / STRIVE Young Adults 
 
Introduction  
My name is Kyle Rowsell and my wife, Natasha, and I are honored to serve as Youth Pastors here in this beautiful 
city. 2017 is a year that Natasha and I will remember and will hold near to our hearts for a long time. God did an 
incredible work in Woodvale Student Ministries and I am beyond excited to share about it in this report!  
 
IntenCity Youth (High School) 
Our program for high school students, known as “IntenCity Youth”, has had an incredible year of ministry. This was 
our first full year as the pastors of IntenCity Youth, and it was a blessing watching God do an amazing work in the 
hearts of our teenagers.  
 

IntenCity Youth happens every Friday night throughout the school year, and Wednesday night’s in the summer! We 
divided these moments up into Encounters, where our students engage in vibrant musical worship, Connect Groups, 
where we divide our teens up by grade and gender into small groups to have a moment of bible study and connection 
and events that vary from going off-site and serving our community to having a social night of laser tag! At IntenCity 
Youth we have made it a high priority that the culture of this group would be founded on the following five core 
values. IntenCity Youth must always be a SAFE place for our teenagers to come and belong. They will not be 
judged, hurt, or put in a place that makes them feel unsafe. PASSION to worship Jesus is  
non-negotiable. These teens absolutely love to get passionate about their savior, whether it is through times of 
worship, prayer or acts of kindness. We always make time for them to live out their passionate relationship with 
Christ! IntenCity Youth is all about FAMILY. We have replaced the word unity with Family as we feel that this group 
has and is continuing to become a family in their relationships with one another. We also hold a high importance in 
empowering the family to continue the process of discipleship in their home! Youth ministry, at its core, is all about 
family discipleship. IntenCity Youth holds DISCIPLESHIP as a high value. We always pursue a deeper relationship 
with Jesus for our students. We want our students to not just know about Jesus, but to know Him personally! This is 
done through teaching of the Word, Connect Groups, and our discipleship group, “The Forge.” And last but certainly 
not least is SERVANTHOOD. At Woodvale we believe that saved people, serve people! And we want the next 
generation to live out this saying. We have many moments throughout the year that are specific to serving our 
community, our church, and one another.  
 

One of the very first events we hold each year for IntenCity Youth is our winter retreat called, “FERVOR”. What an 
incredible event this is for our High School students here at Woodvale. Our guest speaker for the weekend was 
Pastor Adam Gilfillan. Our theme this year was “ANCHORED”, as we wanted these teenagers to be ANCHORED 
and rooted in Christ in all areas of their lives. FERVOR” consists of four sessions where we have vibrant worship, a 
speaker who challenges students and delivers the Word, and a moment of response. Pastor Adam did an incredible 
job as a speaker, and our students were challenged and moved by the Holy Spirit. What a powerful, life altering 
weekend for all who attended! 
 

FERVOR is not the only annual event of which IntenCity is part. Each May we travel by bus to our District Youth 
Convention in Oshawa, ON.  This past year’s theme was “Launched” and students were challenged during each 
session to be “Launched” into their spheres of influence and share the gospel of Jesus.  
 

In June we have a gender divide night where our boys are separated from our girls for one Friday night. This year our 
boys had a great game of Football, a BBQ and then a chat upstairs in our Aftermath Café. Our ladies held an annual 
event, “Radiate” which took place over a two day period.  We had many girls come out and were encouraged by 
women of the next generation. June also meant the graduation of just over fifteen of our students at IntenCity Youth. 
We celebrated with them by taking them downtown and having a graduation dinner!  
 

The summer is always a busy time around IntenCity, as we do not take a break over the summer months. August 
brought about our annual summer camp out at OVPC, which was another life-changing week for all who participated. 
This year they changed the format so that churches were responsible for their groups and registration was done 
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through the local church. This sparked an all-time high in attendance for Youth Camp, and we cannot wait for next 
year’s camp! 
 

In September we revisited the vision for IntenCity Youth. We have updated our vision to read, “To be a generation 
unashamed of their identity as sons and daughters.” 
 
STRIVE Young Adults 
It has been awesome getting to know our young adults even more over the past year and seeing the potential that 
rests upon that group. We have seen substantial growth in Strive Young Adults, and you can read more about this in 
Pastor Matt’s annual report. This group is finding their identity in life as they are exploring vocation, education and 
relationship. Amongst all this, it is amazing to see them find their belonging in the local church here at Woodvale. 
Pastor Matt and I are very excited to see where God will lead this group as they collectively crave connection with 
each other, the needs of the community, and most importantly God.  
 
Parents and Leadership 
As the student ministries pastor here at Woodvale, I still firmly believe that it is my role to assist parents and families 
in the spiritual shaping of their students’ lives.  One of the ways that I love to do this is through clear communication 
to parents. Parents of our IntenCity students who I have in our database receive a regular weekly e-mail from me. 
We also have a fresh new Woodvale Student Ministries website at http://www.woodvalestudents.com or Woodvale.ca 
where parents/students can find information about IntenCity Youth.  
 

We also held our first Parents’ Meeting in September, where we updated parents on the year to date, and informed 
them on the months ahead. These are crucial moments of communication to parents and guardians! I believe that 
leadership is founded on communication, and we love having open communication with the parents of these teens!  
 

I want to take a moment and thank the real MVPs at IntenCity Youth, our leadership team. Our leaders are incredible 
people who have a desire to serve the teenagers of this city with servant hearts. These are the people who support 
Natasha and me in navigating this amazing ministry, and their heart for these students is incredible. We honestly love 
their desire to learn and grow, and their dedication to this ministry. They truly are the MVPs and we could not do what 
we are doing without them!  
 

Special thanks to Pastor Mark, our Board of Deacons, and Staff for making Woodvale such an enjoyable, exciting 
place of ministry!  And thanks to you (the people of Woodvale) for your continued support, encouragement and 
prayers. We are so humbled by the love and support that you have shown us, and we cannot wait to share what God 
has done in our 2018 report!  
 
Pastor Kyle Rowsell  
Associate Student Ministries Pastor  
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Spiritual Growth and Connections Report 
 
How comforting it is to know that wherever we go, God is with us. Sometimes friends, spouses, and parents don't 
really understand what we are going through. But God does and He cares. At Woodvale, we seek God’s face and His 
presence and on a weekly basis.  We know He is with us, helping us and guiding our lives and situations. God told 
Joshua to be strong and to have courage. Then He told him a wonderful truth: "The Lord your God will be with you 
wherever you go." ……… wherever! We don't have to feel alone. God is with us. God is with you!!! 
 

But now ... the Lord who created you ... says: "Do not be afraid, for I have ransomed you. I have called you by name; 
you are mine. When you go through deep waters, I will be with you. When you go through rivers of difficulty, you will 
not drown. When you walk through the fire of oppression, you will not be burned up; the flames will not consume you. 
For I am the LORD, your God, the Holy One of Israel, your Saviour. From eternity to eternity I am God. No one can 
snatch anyone out of my hand. No one can undo what I have done. Isaiah 43:1-3, 13 NLT. 
 

I want to thank every leader with whom I work so closely. Without your hard work, dedication to Christ and His 
followers, we would not accomplish what we do together. It is my desire that each of you feel valued and appreciated 
in all you do. Thank you!  
I would like to note that if you are not listed in this report, it was certainly not my intention to omit you. 
 
Connect Groups 
 

It is an honour for me to oversee the 70+ Connect Groups that we have all over Ottawa. Connect Groups are the 
method that we have chosen at Woodvale for people to be discipled and live and do life together. It continues to be 
our goal to see everyone connected in a group. At year end we had approximately 600 people ages Senior High and 
up, as part of a Connect Group.  
 

We really do have a Connect Group for everyone, from prayer groups, fitness groups, fellowship/relational type 
groups, Bible study groups, to some that just connect. We constantly hear of the incredible stories of what God is 
doing, both in groups corporately and in individuals. Discipleship is happening as we follow the Biblical model at 
Woodvale.  
 
If you are not yet a part of a Connect Group, drop by the Connect wall or check out our website at www.woodvale.ca 
to narrow down your search. You can also call or email me so that I can help you start your journey of “Doing Life 
Together”. 
 

Thank you to all the leaders and host homes, for your weekly or biweekly commitment to helping people connect.  
Special thank you to the Area Leaders, Rosie, Kathleen, Ruth Ann and Richard,  who help with support and care of 
our groups. 
 

The Connect group that I am a part of is great!  It is refreshing, and it challenges me and helps me be a better person 
and follower of Christ. Join one today!!! 
 
Sermon Aligned Curriculum 
 

Each week there is a team of writers who prepare Connect Group curriculum, based on the Sunday Sermon, so that 
groups can go deeper in the relaxed, cozy atmosphere of their home. These can be found online. Thanks to Ingrid, 
Summer, Ron, Cathy and Deidre for your amazing work in this area. You really do enhance the Connect Group 
experience. 

 
Missions Committee 
 

In 2017 it was once again an honour for me to serve on the Woodvale Missions Committee. It is great to see a 
Church that gives so freely and generously to God's work around the world. We are able to support many Global 

Woodvale Pentecostal Church Annual Report 2017 26

http://www.woodvale.ca/


 

Workers and projects and see lives changed as a result of your giving. Thank you for your confidence in me to be a 
part of this committee and be involved in the lives of Global Workers worldwide.  
 

Syrian Friends 
 

In July of 2017 we were able to successfully transition the Alkhoury family to Canada. This was an endeavour that 
was supported by Woodvale with finances, prayer, and a team of people that made this a reality. I would like to thank 
the lead team of Stewart and Mari for the long hours and hard work. I know that there was a large support team that 
has taken care of every detail required to resettle our family here in Canada. Thank you to each person responsible 
for this, from transportation, finance, translation, health matters, housing, education, employment and beyond. This 
undertaking was done with excellence and determination. It was an honour for me to be the Staff liaison to this great 
team. 
 
Solo Moms 
 

On the first and third Wednesday evenings of each month, we have a great connection moment for Solo Moms. A 
meal and a DVD/book study is provided for all who attend.  Thank you, Latona, for providing leadership in 2017. You 
have given such great care and opportunity for these Moms and their families to be welcomed and grow spiritually 
together. It is awesome to know that Moms feel appreciated and cared for by their church.  

 
Alpha 
 

Alpha is a course for people who are exploring Christianity and have questions about God and life. If you are looking 
for an evening to learn about Christianity, this program provides an environment where people feel comfortable 
discussing these things. Each Wednesday evening this course is offered to those who are at this stage of their life. 
Lakshmi is our Alpha director, and has done an incredible job in 2017, with her team, making those who walk into the 
course feel welcome and comfortable to ask anything they choose. In 2017, we offered the course 3 times. Alpha has 
proven that the best way to introduce people to Christ is through personal invitation, and I would like to remind each 
of us that you are welcome to bring a guest to Alpha, to journey with them and prayerfully lead them to Christ. Thank 
you to the wonderful Alpha team. 
 
Each week, as part of the Alpha program a meal is also provided. We so appreciate the hard work in the kitchen, and 
the great food that is provided. Thank you to Brenda, Gloria, Cheryl and Bill. 

 
Follow 
 

While Alpha is the first step in Woodvale’s discipleship journey, the Follow Course is the next step. 2017 was a year 
that saw us disciple many people in their faith through this course. Every Wednesday night we have people who are 
willing and wanting to go deeper in their relationship with God and take the Follow course under Jeff's leadership. 
This is a great resource and tool for people who want to take the next step. Thank you, Jeff, for your incredible insight 
into God’s word and for your care of each person in the course. 
 
Celebrate Recovery 
 

Celebrate Recovery runs for 52 weeks a year!! Every Monday night those with ‘Hurts, Habits and Hangups’ have a 
place where they can safely share their struggles with others and find help and healing through this 12 step 
program.  Companionship, accountability partners and sponsors make it unnecessary to walk the journey alone. We 
have an incredibly gifted team of leaders who give so generously of their time and talents to help people recover, 
heal and offer hope. This dedicated team comes under the awesome leadership of Linda. Linda has a passion to see 
people healed through CR and the power of Christ.  This team offers great care to all that attend weekly.  
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Life Groups 
 

As well on Monday nights, we offer courses called Life Groups. This past year we offered the groups Grief Share, 
Divorce Care, Search for Significance, Hope, Boundaries and Overcoming Anger. These courses run for 
approximately 12 weeks and are a great personal tool. Hal is our Life Group Director. Hal pours into people from his 
personal experience, and knows the value of these groups. Hal works closely with a great team of facilitators and co-
facilitators who each care so much. The facilitators work so hard to create a safe environment for growth and change. 
It has been awesome to hear of the life changing stories from these Monday night groups. 

 
Follow-Connect-Serve Wall 
 

If you walk through the lobby you will see a wall with the words Follow, Connect and Serve. These words translate 
into a simple strategy for each person. We want people to take the next step in their faith journey. ‘Follow’, points to 
the Alpha course, Follow course and water baptism. ‘Connect’, points followers of Christ to connect with one another 
and God through our Connect Groups. ‘Serve’, points believers to serve in their Church and Community. Each week, 
when you leave the worship centre, you will see the Follow-Connect-Serve wall with people there who are able to 
guide, direct and connect you to these areas of ministry.  I want to thank each person who serves each week at the 
wall, sharing wisdom and information to inquiring minds. Each person at the wall presents with professionalism, care, 
and guidance. Thank you. 

 
Water Baptism 
 

One of the highlights of the month for me is connecting with believers who are ready to take the next step and follow 
in obedience to God’s Word through water baptism. Water baptismal classes are offered monthly on the last Sunday 
at 10:30 am. 2017 was a year where we had 38 people follow in obedience to Christ through water baptism. It is an 
honour and joy for me to lead people through the class and see them get baptized the following Sunday. If you have 
not yet taken the next step in your walk with Christ and desire to be water baptized, please join me in one of the 
classes in 2018.  
 
Guest Follow Up 
 

In 2017 we put a large amount of time and energy in welcoming our guests. We wanted to show our first time guests 
that we care for them, and wanted them to connect. I loved being able to reach out to each first time guest and offer 
them various ways to connect with others at Woodvale. In 2017, we had 1,023 first and 131 second time guests with 
419 kids attending too.  Each first time guest received a welcome email, a hand written thank you card, and follow up 
a few weeks later. Please do not underestimate the influence that you have on your family and friends in leading 
them to church and/or to Christ.  
As we announce every week at Woodvale, we want each of our guests to go to our guest lounge where they can 
connect with our Guest Lounge staff and receive a free gift from us. I want to thank the guest lounge team for their 
warm and welcoming approach to each person that goes there. Thank you for being such a great team and for 
making our guests feel welcome. 

 
Mission trip 2017 
 

In August of 2017, Esther and I along with Pastor Mark led a team to Colombia where we supported global workers, 
Darren and Patty McCrea.  The team consisted of Tony and Marie, Rob, Cindy, and their children, Anika, Evan and 
Olivia, as well as, our boys, Ethan and Isaac. Each team member was impacted by the trip and we were so thankful 
for the work we accomplished on the building and the opportunity to support this Global worker and his family. We 
used funds raised by Woodvale in 2016, to help build a Church/Community Centre, lead family seminars, and 
participate in a local Church Conference. 
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Special Thanks 
 

I would also like to take this time to thank Pastor Mark and Evelyn for the opportunity to serve with them. Woodvale is 
a great church, with exciting opportunities that lie ahead as we corporately walk through open doors. It is a great 
privilege to work alongside a great staff too, each so passionate for Christ and His church. The office staff works 
diligently and is very helpful.  I work closest with Tricia, and want to thank her for her dedication to detail and serving 
with excellence. I would like to make special mention and thank Ed, for all his hard work, and his desire to serve 
where needed. I really do work with some quality people!! It is so appreciated. Family is everything to me, and I 
appreciate the sacrifice and support of my amazing wife, Esther, and our boys Ethan and Isaac. You each have a 
heart to serve and care for people, God has blessed me with you. 
 
Looking forward to a great 2018!!! 
 
Respectfully submitted and serving both you and Him. 
 
Pastor Marvin
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Administration Report  
Authentic   Relational   Diverse   Follow   Connect   Serve 
 

At Woodvale these are words that give us perspective for what we do. These are words that guide us. These are 
words that describe the vision and mission for Woodvale Pentecostal Church.  
 

We set out to make a difference for good in our community and in the lives of our neighbours by introducing them to 
Jesus. Pastor Mark has challenged us with the question, “If the church were gone tomorrow would our neighbours 
miss us? We intend to work toward a resounding “YES” to answer that question. 
 

Authentic, Relational, Diverse is who we are, and Follow, Connect, Serve is what we do. 
 

Every day we work toward accomplishing our visionary goals through many ministries and connections that you, the 
church, have with people in our community. Many of those connections take place at 205 Greenbank Road.  
 

We have an amazing facility that God has blessed us with for His ministry. Our facility has almost 80,000 square feet 
of ministry space. Within that space are: 12 Offices, 30 rooms for meetings and ministry, 1 main auditorium, 1 
ministry center, 1 library, 3 kitchen and food prep areas and 16 washroom areas. Throughout the week, including 
Sundays, we have approximately 2,600 people using these spaces every week. That is a lot of connecting! 
 

I provide oversight to some key areas that help to facilitate those connections. 
These areas include Facility Maintenance, Church Office Administration, Benevolence Ministry, Hospitality and our 
church library. 
 
Facility Maintenance 
With so many connections taking place at Woodvale every week, there is a lot to do in order to maintain the facility 
and property God has blessed us with. We have a variety of contractors and volunteers who help make this possible. 
 

Our cleaning is cared for by Estera Dragan of Estera Dragan Services. She and her staff look after our cleaning 
needs on a daily basis. 
 

Rick McWhinnie of Chem Dry Imperial cleans our carpets on an as required basis. They use a natural product to 
keep scents and chemicals to a minimum.  
 

We have two contractors who look after our evening lock up and set up. Sureshkumar Kaileswaran looks after the 
weekends and Joel Girard covers the week day events.  
 

Our snow clearing contract is held by Greg and Mel Foster of Foster Farms.  
 

Our lawns were cared for by Dylan Chambers of Cultivate Lawn Care.  
 

Ed Hunter has agreed to take on the job of keeping our walkways cleared all winter again this season. 
 

We also have a dedicated group of a few people who volunteer with building maintenance. Everything from changing 
light bulbs in the most remote areas of the building to picking up garbage and painting class rooms, fixing plumbing 
and electrical systems; you name it, a volunteer has been involved with it.  
 

Some of those amazing servants are: 
Tim Armour, Denis Begin, Ernst Denbroeder, Caleb Farley, Harold Freeburn, Ryan Greer, Joel Girard, Ray Gorrie, 
Ed Hunter, Suresh Kaileswaran, Sherry Kerr, Greg Lewis, Gord Millar, Wayne & Debbie Mosley, Phil Nash, Doug 
Payne, Rick Powell, Lloyd Prezeau, Tony Purvis, Victor Ramirez, Kelly & Ray Rogers, Clayton Sinclair, Paul Stride, 
Stephen Tom, Susan Tom, Henry Tom 
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We have an IT department and as with most things at Woodvale, it is run by dedicated volunteers. 
Ernst denBroeder has served as our Network Administrator since 2001 and continues to serve in this capacity. Chisel 
Cantwell stepped in to serve with the PC side of our Mac / PC environment in 2015. I am very glad to these very 
capable and accomplished men who so generously and willingly giving of their time and talents to serve their church. 
 

Debbie Mosley and her team of decorators have done an amazing job again in 2017 with decorations appropriate for 
each season. 
 

Brenda Cassalman continues in the role of Kitchen Coordinator. Brenda keeps us organized and stocked. 
Gayle Freeburn coordinates funeral receptions. Mari McLaughlin makes the calls for food. Thank you to all who 
faithfully respond to these requests.   
 

Kelly Rogers and Ryan Greer both serve on our Deacon Board and share the portfolio of property. They are a great 
help with looking after Woodvale from a facility management point of view. This is no small task! 
 

Thank you to everyone who serves God and their church by looking after the property. 
 
Church Office Administration 
We have an incredible administrative team that I am privileged to work alongside. We do not have a large office staff 
for a church of our size. Our staff accomplishes a lot and does it with grace and professionalism. 
 

Carol Ann Stagg is our Office Administrator. She manages our incoming call volume, our weekly bulletin and assists 
me with other areas including scheduling regular ministry groups, outside group room bookings, calendar updates, 
ordering office supplies as well as performing secretarial duties for the Pastoral Staff. Carol Ann works an 80% work 
volume. Gayle Freeburn has filled in the gap on a contract basis. Gayle brings great organizational skills and a 
willingness and flexibility to serve where needed. 
 

Helen Lewis served as part-time Administrative Assistant until December of 2017 when she moved west with her 
family.  Helen was a tremendous help maintaining our database, dealing with work place health and safety and 
assisting me with coordinating volunteer building maintenance. 
 

Tricia Millar continues to serve as an Administrative Assistant in a full-time role. She administrates our follow up 
process with all of our guests and all the connect cards that come in every Sunday and other administrative support 
for Pastor Marvin. She also works to maintain our database and assists me with administrating some of our 
Hospitality Teams. 
 

Jon Fish joined our team of administrative staff as Finance Officer in 2016 and continues to work closely with our 
Treasurer, James King, and also serves as Envelope Secretary. We are grateful for the skills Jon brings to the job. 
 
 

Benevolent  
Benevolence is the compassion of Jesus we share with our church and community. It involves responding and 
reaching out to those within our church family and general community who may need some assistance. In 2017, 
Woodvale responded to many needs through all of our ministry groups because it is part of who we are as a 
relational church.  Through the church office specifically, we also responded to 170 different requests for help with 
everything from groceries, to medical bills, to car repairs. In 2017, the Church board made a shift in how this ministry 
is managed. Greg Foster who has been a long time serving treasurer stepped down and management has shifted to 
the pastoral staff and church board. 
 

One of our big efforts each year is our annual Christmas hamper outreach. We call it a “Day of Blessing.” This year, 
on December 16th,we delivered food hampers to 80 families. Our food hampers were coordinated by Lisa and Paul 
Goodrige again this year. Many volunteers and some connect groups participated in making this a successful event 
again in 2017. We could not have done it without you bringing in groceries and a large donation of produce again 
from Foster Family Farm. 
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Many families were helped because you did something such as bringing in groceries for the Day of Blessing in 
December or letting us know of a job vacancy at your work place.  
 

Every year we hear stories about the amazing ways that God answers prayers and meets needs through you and 
your kindness to others and your obedience to Him. Together we can accomplish much more for Him. 
 

I really enjoy the fall and Operation Christmas Child. It is such a heartwarming ministry to be a part of. Again this 
year, Breno and Fernanda Hebert, along with a small team of volunteers, did a great job leading us through another 
successful season. Tom Armour coordinated the trailer load. 7,053 shoe boxes were loaded on to a trailer headed for 
Samaritan’s Purse, where they will be prepared and rerouted to many destinations all over the world. 1,200 of those 
boxes came from Woodvale. 
 

Statistics indicate that two of every ten children who receive a shoebox will accept Jesus as their Saviour changing 
not only the child’s life but their family’s lives as well. By sending 1200 boxes we have helped at least 240 more 
children into the Kingdom! 
 
Hospitality  
Hospitality at Woodvale is multifaceted. It is exciting! 
 

We have 7 teams that are a part of creating a first time experience for our Guests and providing care to our church 
body.  We see it working on Sundays as soon as we enter the parking lot and the church. 
 

On Sunday mornings there are 68 people scheduled to serve on one of our hospitality teams. Some of our teams 
have uniforms. You will see them in their green t-shirts, clearly visible to those who may need some assistance.  
Some wear orange safety vests and are always outside greeting us with a smile as we drive onto the church parking 
lots. Others have name tags indicating who they are and what they do. No matter what team they are on, or what 
their uniform looks like, they are here to serve the King of Kings by serving you.  
 

Sunday Hospitality at Woodvale is comprised of seven teams. They are:  
 

Parking: This year Rob Burris, who has been serving as our Parking Team Coordinator since 2016, stepped down 
and Chris Moffit has stepped up. I am very grateful for the service and commitment that Rob gave to this group. Chris 
has big shoes to fill and I know he will do well.  We have four parking teams and have seen some transition in team 
members this year. We could use your help. Please contact me at jnyenhuis@woodvale.ca  
Everyone who serves on this team faithfully works outdoors one Sunday a month.  
 

Greeters: Estera Dragan continues to lead our Greeters.  The Greeting team consists of 42 people who welcome 
everyone as they arrive Sunday mornings. They meet guests in the parking lot and assist them navigating the church 
and give them a green guest welcome bag. This bag will help all of us identify our guests. When you see someone 
with a green guest bag welcome them to Woodvale! 
 

Info Kiosks: Chan Sirjoosingh has been coordinating our Info Kiosk team for many years. In 2017, she stepped down 
to spend time with family. Latona Nicholson has stepped up to provide leadership to 26 volunteers who are ready to 
offer helpful information, assist people with electronic donations and sign up for events each Sunday. You will 
recognize them in their green t-shirts. 
 

Ushers: Katie Onuekwa continues to serve as our Head Usher. Our Ushering team consists of 54 active members 
who faithfully serve God by serving you.  
 

Communion: Tom Armour coordinates our communion servers for the main floor and Rick McWhinnie does so for the 
balcony level. Lynette Zinnicker , Helen Arsenault, Mari McLaughlin are all involved in keeping the elements stocked 
and prepared for communion each month. Thank you for your dedication. 
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Sunday Security:  Don Martin faithfully and skillfully led the security team until December 2017.  Don passed on to be 
with Jesus on December 21. We miss him tremendously. Don led six dedicated people who serve in this ministry. 
The Sunday Security Team help to maintain a safe environment and keep our people flow moving well inside the 
building. They are equipped to assist in emergency situations. Louie Rodriguez has graciously stepped up to lead 
this group forward. You will recognize them in their green t-shirts. 
 

Café: Our Café is well used every Sunday with many people gathered around the tables and chairs talking. Mary 
Beyer continues to coordinate our Café and the 23 dedicated volunteers who keep the café stocked and the coffee 
hot. As one of our hospitality teams you will see them in their green aprons with “Here to Serve” printed on each one. 
 
Library 
Your library is the ultimate boredom slayer. Woodvale’s library has hundreds of volumes to assist you and your family 
in growing your relationship with God. We have non-fiction and fiction; children’s volumes and media for all ages. 
 

Martha Navaro continues in the role of Head Librarian and provides leadership and oversight to our Church Library 
and 10 volunteers. We have a very dedicated and long serving library staff as well as some new people this year.  
 

There is lots of material to encourage you and your family or your connect group in your walk with God. Our library is 
a tremendous resource that is easily accessible. You can apply for a free library card at the Library or on our website 
at woodvale.ca. Check the Sunday bulletin for a new Library theme each month. 
 

Claudette is my Proverbs 31 wife who I am blessed to share my life with. Together we consider it a privilege to serve 
alongside Pastor Mark and an amazing team of Pastors and Board here at Woodvale Pentecostal Church.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Pastor Joe Nyenhuis 
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Missions Committee Report 
 
I would like to begin this 2017 mission’s annual report by thanking the congregation of Woodvale Pentecostal Church 
for their tremendous support for missions during 2017. This support was provided both in prayer and in financial 
support for all of the Global Workers that WPC is partnering with. It has truly been another great year in missions.   
 

Thank you also to the Pastoral Staff, the Church Board, and the Missions Committee. The Committee members in 
2017 were: Pastors Mark Scarr and Marvin Sinclair, Tricia Millar (Secretary), Hellen Gwayumba, Sergei Bantseev, 
Tanya Pollard, Charity Scheel, and myself.  
 

In August, we had a connect group from Woodvale go on a short-term missions trip to Colombia. The team was led 
by Pastor Marvin and also included Pastor Mark. They were able to stay with Darren and Patty McCrea, who are the 
local Global Workers that we, as a church, support. While there, they had the opportunity to help build the local 
church (which was under construction), preach the gospel and connect with the community while sharing God's love. 
 

Another highlight in 2017 was the special missions focus on Sunday, November 19th. We supported an amazing 
project in Turkana, Kenya. Deborah Sirjoosingh came and presented the project to the church. Following the special 
missions Sunday, Woodvale was able to give $32,566 towards providing upgrades and renovations to the health 
centre in Turkana where Deborah is a Global Medical Worker.  
 

Global Workers  
Woodvale's monthly supported Global Workers in 2017 included the following: 
 

Paul & Kyla Arsenault, Canada  - Wycliffe / PAOC 
Marilyn Bush, Kenya  - PAOC 
Deborah Sirjoosingh, Kenya, - PAOC 
Phil & Judy Bowler, Guinea, - PAOC 
Ilya & Janet Bantseev, Russia - PAOC 
Wayne & Ann Hilsden, Israel, - King of Kings/PAOC 
Mark & Cherilyn Orr, Uganda - International Teams 
Tim & Sandra Smith, Indonesia - MAF Canada 
Eric Malloy, Canada - Bridges for Peace Canada/Israel 
Darren & Patty McCrea, Colombia - PAOC 
Gary & Bev Laing, Cambodia -PAOC 
Javier & Stephanie de Moran, El Salvador -PAOC (support ended in Oct. as they returned home) 
Alejandro & Mercedes Cetrulo, Uruguay - PAOC  
Sheldon & Anna Armitage, Slovakia - PAOC 
Jennifer & Raz Iacob, Romania -PAOC 
 

RAN/PAOC are Global Workers in various Restricted Access Nations (RAN). These are locations not friendly to 
missionary activity and for safety reasons, their names and locations are not given. We supported seven RAN Global 
Worker's in 2017.  Six of these are RAN/PAOC. 
 

Ottawa Based Ministries 
In addition to the above Global Workers, WPC also provides monthly support to three Ottawa-based ministries: 
Capital City Missions, Ottawa Innercity Ministries, and Restoring Hope. 
 
Humanitarian  
Special humanitarian response went to projects such as the Canada Food Grains Fund-$5,000, Famine in Somalia 
and Kenya-$2,000, and Hurricane Irma-$7,500. Woodvale's support for these projects was directed through the 
PAOC's Emergency Relief and Development Overseas (ERDO). 
 

Woodvale Pentecostal Church Annual Report 2017 34



 

In addition to humanitarian response, the following Global Workers, Ministries, and short term missionaries also 
received one-time support in 2017:   
Angela Wood and family, short-term missions work in El Salvador 
Cassidy family 
David Bowler, short-term missions work- Brazil 
Caleb de Moran, towards medical costs 
Javier & Stephanie de Moran, El Salvador - PAOC 
Paul Arsenault, Canada, with Wycliffe 
Aboriginal Bible Academy, Canada 
Paul Kohls, Kenya - PAOC 
Peter Oram, Haiti - PAOC 
Bridges For Peace, Support Israel 
Jamie & Misty Duggan, Village of Hope, Africa - PAOC 
City Kidz Ottawa  
IBQ, Quebec Bible College 
Cal & June Anthony, PAOC 
Jon & Audrey Van Belle, El Salvador - PAOC 
Ottawa Innercity Ministries, Renovations 
Alkhoury Family, Syrian Refugee family 
Linda Duncalfe, Kenya - PAOC 
PAOC Missions 
We also gave to one RAN Global Worker. 
 
 
Income and Expenditures 
 
Total expenditures for Missions in 2017 were $269,933. Figure-1 presents a summary of expenditures by category. 
Expenditure categories include: Full Time Support - Monthly Global Worker Support, Special Missions Sunday 
Project (Turkana medical centre), Humanitarian/Special Projects - funds allocated to humanitarian assistance and 
special projects, Designated - funds designated to specific Global Workers or Projects, 
Honorariums/Hospitality/Administration, and Short term missions trip - Colombia. 
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Figure-1: 2017 Missions Expenditures by 
Category (total $269,933) 
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Income categories for 2017 missions budget included: Undesignated - funds given to general missions, Designated - 
funds given to a specific Global Worker or ministry, Special Missions Sunday - funds raised for Turkana project, 
General Fund (GF) Subsidy - funds from WPC General Fund given towards missions, and STM Colombia - funds 
raised for Woodvale missions trip. Figure- 2 gives a summary of 2017 missions income by category. 
 
 

 
 
 
Additional information about missions can be found in the overall financials of Woodvale Pentecostal Church located 
in the Financial Section of this Annual Church Report. In conclusion, thank you again for your prayers and your giving 
towards missions. As a church congregation we know that a “Missions-minded” church is a “blessed of God” church, 
thus let us redouble our missions efforts going forward into 2018. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Anthony Campbell 
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Finance Committee Report 
 

I recently read an article stating that evangelical churches who continue to embrace the biblical word of God are 
growing in attendance.  Woodvale Pentecostal Church is a great example of what God will do with a church that 
keeps Jesus as the centre. It is my pleasure to report to you a financial summary of 2017, and to give you an 
understanding of the 2018 fiscal year ahead.  
 

The audited financial reports for Woodvale Pentecostal Church (WPC) and Woodvale Pentecostal Church Property 
Corporation (WPCPC), and the unaudited report for Woodvale Pentecostal Church Construction Corporation 
(WPCCC), follow this report. 
 
People Who Serve 
 

Looking within our church, the positive financial position WPC is currently in is due to the hard work of the men and 
women who serve this church.  God has given us a pastoral team that is committed to wise financial stewardship, 
while investing in the programs and ministries that are making impact in and outside of the church.   
God has brought to this church each and every one of you to help serve with your abilities, and your faithful tithing. 
 
2017 Financial Highlights 
 

The balance of our mortgage outstanding at the end of 2017 was $3,295,165. Our mortgage funding consists of a 
fixed interest rate loan at 2.25% due in May 2018.  As of Dec 2017 WPC has 9.4 years left on the mortgage. 
 

Our parking lot expansion was completed in Sept 2017.  Total actual investment for this project came in at $745,000.  
As of Dec 31, 2017, WPC still owed $200,000 to the church’s line of credit.  We finished 2017 with a fund balance of 
+$240,000 over end of year 2016.  Our cash balance for same period +$40,000.  Our pastoral team kept expenses in 
check in 2017 with only a slight increase of +$19,000 year over year.  Lastly WPC increased its giving to the PAOC 
in 2017 by $29,000. 

 
Revenue/Expenditure Summary 
The following table summarizes the combined revenue and expenditures of the Church Corporation (WPC) and the 
Property Corporation (WPCPC) in 2017.  This combined view shows a more complete picture of the financial position 
of Woodvale. This summary is based on the unaudited numbers available at the end of December. 
 
 

Revenue  

 General Fund $2,568,662 

 Building Fund $222,366 

 Missions 189,341 

 Ministries 229,289 

Total $3,209,658 
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Expenditures in WPC  

 Administration $148,143 

 District and Community $255,000 

 Staff $902,845 

 Ministries $371,235 

 Building $311,632 

 Missions $269,936 

Total $2,258,791 

  

Capital Expenditures   

Capital Expenditures: WPC $48,299 

Capital Expenditures WPCPC $685,847 

Due from WPCPC to WPC $271,854 

Total  $1,006,000 

  

Expenditures in WPCPC  

 Operational $54,436 

 Interest payments (mortgage) $81,479 

Principal Payments on Mortgage  $318,372 

Principal Payments on Loans $25,000 

Total $479,287 

  

Combined increase/(decrease) in cash position 
WPC & WPCPC 

$9,288 

 
Budget 2018 
 

The 2018 budget is funded by $3.200,000 in total revenue. Beyond the continuing costs for staff, ministries, missions, 
mortgage payments, and building operations, notable budget items in 2018 include: 
 

 Grid Note repayment in support of the 2017 Parking Lot expansion - $200,000 to be repaid by end of 2018. 

 Budget reflects a 2.5% increase in tithes based on 2017 actual tithe revenue. (+$188,000) 

 Exterior Expenses (Snow Removal) up $28K in 2018 

 The General Fund will continue to supplement the Missions budget by $68,000 this year 
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In Conclusion 
 

The 2018 budget reflects a church that is blessed by an upward trend in giving.  It is poised to pay off its expansion 
parking lot in just over a year of its creation.  Besides some small increases in year over year operation costs, the 
budget shows a modest year on spending on any big ticket items.  The goal in 2018 is to fully pay off the remaining 
balance of our lot expansion. 
 
Regarding the upcoming annual business meeting, it would be helpful if you would raise any financial questions with 
me prior to the meeting, as this will allow me to provide a more complete answer.  I can be reached at 
jamesking956@gmail.com or 613-807-0800. 
 
Warm Regards,  
James King 
Treasurer, Woodvale Pentecostal Church 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of
Woodvale Pentecostal Church

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Woodvale Pentecostal Church, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017, and the statements of operations and changes
in fund balances and cash flows, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

.../2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Woodvale Pentecostal Church as at December 31, 2017, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Other Matters 
The financial statements of Woodvale Pentecostal Church for the year ended December 31, 2016 were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements on March 5, 2017. 

McCay Duff LLP,
Licensed Public Accountants.

Ottawa, Ontario,
March 5, 2018.
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016

Operating Capital Missions Operating Capital Missions
Fund Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Fund Total

ASSETS
CURRENT

Cash $ 203,857 $ - $ - $ 203,857 $ 163,598 $ - $ - $ 163,598
HST rebate receivable 23,492 - - 23,492 24,140 - - 24,140
Prepaid 2,226 - - 2,226 493 - - 493
Due from WPC Construction Corporation

(note 4) 98,693 11,600 - 110,293 20,193 11,600 - 31,793
Due from WPC Property Corporation

(note 4) 271,354 500 - 271,854 133,357 500 - 133,857
599,622 12,100 - 611,722 341,781 12,100 - 353,881

LOAN RECEIVABLE (note 5) 35,000 - - 35,000 35,000 - - 35,000

CAPITAL (note 6) - 237,246 - 237,246 - 259,631 - 259,631

$ 634,622 $ 249,346 $ - $ 883,968 $ 376,781 $ 271,731 $ - $ 648,512

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
CURRENT

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 113,167 $ - $ - $ 113,167 $ 85,992 $ - $ - $ 85,992
Source deduction remittances payable 21,376 - - 21,376 23,049 - - 23,049
Deferred contribution (note 7) 3,245 - - 3,245 33,627 - - 33,627

137,788 - - 137,788 142,668 - - 142,668

FUND BALANCES 496,834 249,346 - 746,180 234,113 271,731 - 505,844

$ 634,622 $ 249,346 $ - $ 883,968 $ 376,781 $ 271,731 $ - $ 648,512

Commitment (note 8)
On behalf of the Woodvale Pentecostal Church:

__________________________________
Board Member
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016

Operating Capital Missions Operating Capital Missions
Fund Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Fund Total

REVENUE
General (Schedule A) $ 2,568,662 $ - $ - $ 2,568,662 $ 2,391,867 $ - $ - $ 2,391,867
Church ministries (Schedule B) 229,289 - - 229,289 222,266 - - 222,266
Capital fund - designated - 222,366 - 222,366 - 89,761 - 89,761
Missionary outreach (Schedule C) - - 189,341 189,341 - - 193,955 193,955

2,797,951 222,366 189,341 3,209,658 2,614,133 89,761 193,955 2,897,849

EXPENSES
Administration (Schedule D) 148,143 - - 148,143 136,876 - - 136,876
District and community donation

(Schedule E) 255,000 - - 255,000 229,855 - - 229,855
Staff (Schedule F) 902,845 - - 902,845 894,144 - - 894,144
Church ministries (Schedule G) 371,235 - - 371,235 359,417 - - 359,417
Building (Schedule H) 311,632 - - 311,632 296,991 - - 296,991
Missionary outreach (Schedule I) - - 269,936 269,936 - - 250,745 250,745
Donation to WPC Property Corporation 417,481 222,366 - 639,847 614,772 89,761 - 704,533
Amortization - 70,684 - 70,684 - 46,154 - 46,154

2,406,336 293,050 269,936 2,969,322 2,532,055 135,915 250,745 2,918,715

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE
OVER EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR 391,615 ( )70,684 ( )80,595 240,336 82,078 ( )46,154 ( )56,790 ( )20,866

Fund balances - beginning of year 234,113 271,731 - 505,844 228,761 297,949 - 526,710

625,728 201,047 ( )80,595 746,180 310,839 251,795 ( )56,790 505,844
INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Capital asset purchases ( )48,299 48,299 - - ( )19,936 19,936 - -
Other ( )80,595 - 80,595 - ( )56,790 - 56,790 -

( )128,894 48,299 80,595 - ( )76,726 19,936 56,790 -

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR $ 496,834 $ 249,346 $ - $ 746,180 $ 234,113 $ 271,731 $ - $ 505,844
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses for the year $ 240,336 $( )20,866
Item not involving cash

- amortization 70,684 46,154

311,020 25,288
Change in non-cash working capital balances

- HST rebate receivable 648 3,437
- prepaid expenses ( )1,733 ( )493
- Due from WPC Construction Corporation ( )78,500 ( )1,400
- Due from WPC Property Corporation ( )137,997 ( )1,400
- accounts payable and accrued liabilities 27,175 29,879
- Source deduction remittances payable ( )1,673 3,156
- Deferred revenue ( )30,382 24,585

( )222,462 59,164

88,558 84,452

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets ( )48,299 ( )19,936

CHANGE IN CASH POSITION DURING THE YEAR 40,259 64,516

Cash - beginning of  year 163,598 99,082

CASH  - END OF YEAR $ 203,857 $ 163,598
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

1. ORGANIZATION

Woodvale Pentecostal Church (the "Church") was incorporated under Part II of the Canada
Corporations Act on May 24, 2006 and was continued under the Canada Not-for-profit Corporations
Act on April 29, 2014.  The Church is affiliated with the Pentecostal Assemblies of Canada and its
purpose is to provide moral and spiritual leadership to its members and to proclaim the gospel of
Jesus Christ.  The Church is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act and the organization is
exempt from income taxes.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations, which are part of Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and
include the following significant accounting policies:

(a) Fund Accounting

Operating Fund

The Operating Fund reports all revenue and expenses used for the daily operations of the
Church.

Capital Fund

The Capital Fund is used to record capital assets of the Church not owned by the Woodvale
Pentecostal Church Property Corporation ("WPCPC"), to accumulate funds for building
expansion, to fund commitments made to the WPCPC for servicing the mortgage and to fund
repairs and maintenance or replace existing assets through a transfer to the Operating Fund.

Mission Fund

The Mission Fund records the revenues and expenses related to the missions program of the
Church.

(b) Revenue Recognition

The Church follows the restricted fund method of accounting for restricted contributions.
Revenue derived from donations to the Church are included in revenue in the appropriate
restricted fund in the year in which the related expenses are incurred.  Unrestricted contributions
are recorded when received or receivable, if ultimate collection is reasonably assured.

Investment income is recognized as revenue of the operating fund when earned.
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd.)

(c) Financial Instruments

The Church's financial instruments consist of cash, HST rebate receivable, source deduction
remittances payable, due from WPC Construction Corporation, due from WPC Property
Corporation and accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

Measurement

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition.

The Church subsequently measures all of its financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized
cost.

Impairment

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are tested for impairment when there are indicators
of impairment.  The amount of any write-down or subsequent recovery is recognized in the
excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses.

(d) Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided as
follows:

Office equipment 7 years Straight line basis
Computer equipment 4 years Straight line basis
Furniture and fixtures 10 years Straight line basis
Kitchen equipment 10 years Straight line basis
Musical equipment 7 years Straight line basis
Sign 10 years Straight line basis

One-half of the above rates are recorded in the year of acquisition.

(e) Volunteer Services

The Church receives the services of volunteers, the cost of which cannot be reasonably
estimated.  Therefore, no representation of this expense has been included in these financial
statements.

(f) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities.  These estimates are reviewed periodically and adjustments are made to the
excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses as appropriate in the year they become known.
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

3. FINANCIAL RISKS AND CONCENTRATION OF RISKS

It is management's opinion that the Church is not exposed to significant interest rate, liquidity, market,
currency and credit risks arising from its financial instruments. There has been no change to the risk
exposure from 2016.

4. SIGNIFICANTLY INFLUENCED ORGANIZATIONS
AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Church exercises significant influence over Woodvale Pentecostal Church Property Corporation
(WPCPC), by virtue of its ability to appoint some of the WPCPC's Board of Directors.  WPCPC was
established to facilitate the operations of the church building for use of the Church and other
organizations in the community with objectives similar to those of the Church.  WPCPC is
incorporated under the Canada Not-for-profit Corporation Act and it is a registered charity under the
Income Tax Act.  The Church makes donations to WPCPC at amounts agreed upon between the
parties relating to the use of facilities.

The Church also exercises significant influence over Woodvale Pentecostal Church Construction
Corporation (WPCCC), by virtue of the requirement that members of WPCCC must be members of
the Church's Board of Deacons.  Therefore the members of the Church Board of Deacons has the
ability to determine the Board of Directors of WPCCC.  WPCCC was established to facilitate the
construction of building and parking lot expansions of the facilities held by the WPCPC.  WPCCC is
incorporated under the Canadian Not-for-profit Corporations Act.

Transactions occurring between the Church and the two related corporations are recorded at the
exchange amount.  During the year the Church made donations to the Property Corporation in the
amount of $639,847 (2016 - $704,533).  Balances between parties are non-interest bearing with no
fixed terms of repayment.  The balances relate to expenditures made by the Church on behalf of the
related corporations.

5. LOAN RECEIVABLE

The loan receivable is due from  an employee, is non-interest bearing and is due upon the earlier of
termination of employment or the sale of the specific property to which it relates.

6. CAPITAL ASSETS
2017 2016

Accumulated
Cost Amortization Net Net

Office equipment $ 67,366 $ 44,498 $ 22,868 $ 22,959
Computer equipment 98,365 75,065 23,300 15,840
Furniture and fixtures 304,323 145,018 159,305 176,325
Kitchen equipment 24,483 11,017 13,466 15,914
Musical equipment 66,493 66,493 - 6,957
Sign 33,286 14,979 18,307 21,636

$ 33,627 $ 33,627 $ 237,246 $ 259,631
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

7. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS

Deferred contributions represent resources restricted for the funding of a program to be delivered in
future periods.

Balance - Less: Plus: Balance -
Beginning Revenue Amounts End

of Year Recognized Received of year

Parking lot $ 21,610 $ 21,610 $ - $ -
Columbia Mission 8,367 8,367 - -
50+ Senior Ministries 3,000 3,000 1,500 1,500
Missions 650 650 1,745 1,745

$ 33,627 $ 33,627 $ 3,245 $ 3,245

8. COMMITMENT

Cleaning

The Church has engaged the services of a company to provide cleaning services for a two year term
ending August 31, 2019 at a fee of $154,125 including applicable taxes.

9. GUARANTEE OF RELATED-PARTY INDEBTEDNESS

The Church is subject to Accounting Guideline 14 - "Disclosure of Guarantees," issued by CPA
Canada. This guideline requires that a guarantor must disclose significant information about the
guarantees it has provided, regardless of whether it will have to make any payments under the
guarantee.

The Church is contingently liable as guarantor with respect to the credit facilities and mortgage of
WPCPC held by Scotiabank.  The mortgage is due May 2018, until which time the Church is acting as
guarantor on the mortgage along with Woodvale Pentecostal Church Construction Corporation.  If
WPCPC becomes unable to make repayments on the mortgage, or breaches covenants on the
agreement, the Church would be required to act under the guarantee.  The mortgage is secured by a
General Security Agreement between the bank and WPCPC and this security would be available to be
used as payment of the mortgage.  At December 31, 2017 the mortgage payable was $3,295,165, the
operating line of credit was $nil, and the grid demand loan payable was $375,000.  The Church does
not have recourse on the Guarantee.

The agreement covering the credit facilities and the mortgage subject to the Church to certain
covenants regarding earnings to debt coverage and net worth tests.  The Church is compliant to both
tests.

10. LICENSING FEE

The Church has agreed to a licensing agreement for use of facilities with Woodvale Pentecostal
Church Property Corporation for an annual fee of $28,800, terminating September 2026.
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

SCHEDULES OF REVENUE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016

SCHEDULE A - GENERAL
Undesignated offerings $ 2,545,003 $ 2,343,149
Interest and investment gains (losses) ( )200 64
Rental 10,165 17,739
Other 13,694 30,915

$ 2,568,662 $ 2,391,867

SCHEDULE B - CHURCH MINISTRIES
Benevolent Fund $ 14,367 $ 10,032
Children's Ministries 3,898 1,026
Christian education - 472
Church café 12,340 12,055
Connect Groups 4,205 6,183
Evangelism 2,319 4,232
Junior High 19,591 19,539
Library 206 107
Men's Fellowship 5,113 4,362
Music Ministry 780 845
Senior High 31,533 18,465
Seniors Ministry 11,541 8,793
Solo Moms 400 1,385
Summer Shake 109,543 108,277
Women's Ministries 4,808 20,023
Young adults 4,091 1,588
Zoom 4,554 4,882

$ 229,289 $ 222,266

SCHEDULE C - MISSIONARY OUTREACH
Undesignated $ 138,530 $ 144,299
Designated 50,811 49,656

$ 189,341 $ 193,955
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

SCHEDULES OF EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016

SCHEDULE D - ADMINISTRATION
Advertising and promotion $ 3,299 $ 2,463
Board of Deacons 2,377 1,611
Credit card fees 17,007 15,924
Facility use 3,798 2,701
General office 28,345 16,232
Guest Ministries 492 1,075
Interest and bank charges 6,116 4,693
Licensing fee (note 10) 28,800 28,800
Postage 5,526 5,844
Printing and publishing 4,871 7,029
Professional fees 12,599 14,607
Stationary and supplies 22,300 22,813
Telephone 12,613 13,084

$ 148,143 $ 136,876

SCHEDULE E - DISTRICT AND COMMUNITY DONATION
P.A.O.C. - District Office $ 219,000 $ 189,719
Master's (EPBC) 26,000 25,000
Community Outreach - 5,635
Ottawa Valley 10,000 9,501

$ 255,000 $ 229,855

SCHEDULE F - STAFF
Conference and education $ 6,274 $ 7,370
Hospitality 4,343 4,592
Miscellaneous travel 351 234
Salaries and allowances and benefits 891,877 881,948

$ 902,845 $ 894,144
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

SCHEDULES OF EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
SCHEDULE G - CHURCH MINISTRIES

Benevolent Fund $ 19,771 $ 12,395
Care 724 202
Children's Ministries 19,313 25,378
Christian education 1,857 3,251
Church Café 9,429 10,318
Communion supplies 1,486 984
Connect Groups 10,973 15,362
Evangelism 45,661 34,156
Fellowship 11,639 11,053
Flowers 8,148 7,410
Junior High 38,651 36,234
Library 1,659 1,339
Men's Fellowship 4,754 4,604
Music Ministries 15,991 19,630
Newcomers 11,933 14,433
Senior High 50,208 35,571
Seniors Ministry 11,410 7,736
Sermon Aids 477 435
Solo Moms 1,106 2,160
Summer Shake 82,551 81,817
Women's Ministries 4,838 20,032
Young Adults 9,894 6,898
Zoom 8,762 8,019

$ 371,235 $ 359,417

SCHEDULE H - BUILDING
Building and equipment maintenance $ 121,169 $ 100,988
Cleaning 75,210 74,051
Heat 12,693 9,623
Hydro 78,040 89,875
Property taxes 2,334 2,334
Insurance 6,227 5,505
Water 15,959 14,615

$ 311,632 $ 296,991

SCHEDULE I - MISSIONARY OUTREACH
Communication and admin $ 76 $ -
Designated 16,380 15,504
Full time support 142,640 135,400
Honorariums and travel 850 2,027
Hospitality 20 94
Humanitarian 14,500 12,000
Short term missions 38,045 51,045
Special projects 57,425 34,675

$ 269,936 $ 250,745
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

BUDGETED SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
Unaudited

Unaudited Budget 2018 Actual 2017 Budget 2017

Operating Capital Missions Operating Capital Missions
Fund Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Fund Total Total

REVENUE
General (Schedule J) $ 2,618,628 $ - $ - $ 2,618,628 $ 2,568,662 $ - $ - $ 2,568,662 $ 2,455,000
Church ministries (Schedule K) 192,470 - - 192,470 229,289 - - 229,289 180,570
Capital find - designated - 183,000 - 200,000 - 222,366 - 222,366 350,000
Missionary outreach (Schedule L) - - 175,000 175,000 - - 189,341 189,341 209,000

2,811,098 183,000 175,000 3,186,098 2,797,951 222,366 189,341 3,209,658 3,194,570
EXPENSES

Administration (Schedule M) 156,800 - - 156,800 148,143 - - 148,143 149,300
District and community donation 
 (Schedule N) 260,900 - - 260,900 255,000 - - 255,000 242,100
Staff (Schedule O) 944,611 - - 944,611 902,845 - - 902,845 919,509
Church ministries (Schedule P) 413,153 - - 413,153 371,235 - - 371,235 393,045
Building (Schedule Q) 336,624 - - 336,624 311,632 - - 311,632 306,800
Missionary outreach 
  Schedule R) - - 243,000 243,000 - - 269,936 269,936 289,596
Donation to WPC Property
  Corporation 251,361 183,000 - 434,361 417,481 222,366 - 639,847 734,362
Amortization - - - - - 70,684 - 70,684 44,500

2,363,449 183,000 243,000 2,789,449 2,406,336 293,050 269,936 2,969,322 3,079,212
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF 

REVENUE OVER EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR 447,649 - ( )68,000 396,649 391,615 ( )70,684 ( )80,595 240,336 115,358

OPERATING TRANSACTIONS
Non-cash item - amortization - - - - - 70,684 - 70,684 44,500
Interfund transfers - - - - ( )128,894 48,299 80,595 - -
Net change in non-cash working

capital items ( )379,649 - - ( )379,649 ( )222,462 - - ( )222,462 -
( )379,649 - - ( )379,649 ( )351,356 118,983 80,595 ( )151,778 44,500

68,000 - ( )68,000 17,000 40,259 48,299 - 88,558 159,858
CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS

Capital asset purchases - - - - - ( )48,299 - ( )48,299 ( )98,825
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 

CASH DURING THE YEAR $ 68,000 $ - $( )68,000 $ 17,000 $ 40,259 $ - $ - $ 40,259 $ 61,033
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

BUDGETED SCHEDULE OF REVENUE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Unaudited Unaudited
Budget Actual Budget

2018 2017 2017

SCHEDULE J - GENERAL
Undesignated offerings $ 2,608,628 $ 2,545,003 $ 2,420,500
Rental 10,000 10,165 15,000
Other - 13,694 19,500

$ 2,618,628 $ 2,568,862 $ 2,455,000

SCHEDULE K - CHURCH MINISTRIES
Benevolent Fund $ 4,000 $ 14,367 $ 4,000
Children's Ministries 1,100 3,898 900
Christian education 500 - 500
Church Café 12,000 12,340 12,000
Connect Groups 2,500 4,205 3,000
Evangelism 500 2,319 400
Junior High 22,340 19,591 19,960
Library 200 206 200
Men's Fellowship 5,000 5,113 5,000
Music Ministries - 780 -
Senior High 31,145 31,533 20,725
Seniors Ministry 8,000 11,541 8,000
Solo Moms 500 400 1,000
Summer Shake 82,700 109,543 77,700
Women's Ministries 8,000 4,808 13,000
Young Adults 8,685 4,091 9,285
Young Marrieds 250 - 250
Zoom 5,050 4,554 4,650

$ 192,470 $ 229,289 $ 180,570

SCHEDULE L - MISSIONARY OUTREACH
Undesignated $ 140,000 $ 138,530 $ 150,000
Designated 35,000 50,811 59,000

$ 175,000 $ 189,341 $ 209,000
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

BUDGETED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Unaudited Unaudited
Budget Actual Budget

2018 2017 2017

SCHEDULE M - ADMINISTRATION
Advertising and promotion $ 5,000 $ 3,299 $ 6,000
Board of Deacons 3,500 2,377 3,500
Facility use 3,000 3,798 4,000
General office 23,000 28,345 16,000
Guest Ministries 6,000 492 5,000
Interest and bank charges 21,000 23,123 21,000
Licensing fee (note 10) 28,800 28,800 28,800
Postage 5,000 5,526 5,500
Printing and publishing 7,000 4,871 8,000
Professional fees 16,000 12,599 16,000
Stationary and supplies 22,000 22,300 18,000
Telephone 16,000 12,613 17,000
Training 500 - 500

$ 156,800 $ 148,143 $ 149,300

SCHEDULE N - DISTRICT AND 
COMMUNITY DONATION

P.A.O.C. - District Office $ 225,400 $ 219,000 $ 206,600
Master's (EPBC) 25,500 26,000 25,500
Ottawa Valley 10,000 10,000 10,000

$ 260,900 $ 255,000 $ 242,100

SCHEDULE O - STAFF
Conference and education $ 11,700 $ 6,274 $ 9,900
Hospitality 5,400 4,343 5,400
Interview expense 1,500 - 1,500
Miscellaneous travel 3,300 351 3,300
Salaries and allowances and benefits 922,711 891,877 899,409

$ 944,611 $ 902,845 $ 919,509
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

BUDGETED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Unaudited Unaudited
Budget Actual Budget

2018 2017 2017

SCHEDULE P - CHURCH MINISTRIES
Benevolent Fund $ 8,000 $ 19,771 $ 8,000
Jump Club 10,600 8,762 9,000
Care 1,500 724 1,500
Cell groups 11,500 10,973 11,500
Children's Ministries 29,250 19,313 31,000
Christian education - 1,857 -
Church Café 10,000 9,429 8,500
Communion supplies 9,000 1,486 1,300
Community outreach 2,520 - -
Evangelism 52,000 45,661 55,650
Fellowship 11,000 11,639 11,000
Flowers 8,000 8,148 8,000
Junior High 44,319 38,651 40,915
Library 2,000 1,659 2,000
Men's Fellowship 6,000 4,754 6,000
Music Ministries 17,600 15,991 25,600
Newcomers 16,000 11,933 14,250
Senior High 53,645 50,208 40,075
Seniors Ministries 9,000 11,410 8,750
Solo Moms 1,500 1,106 2,350
Spiritual Life and Discipleship 750 477 750
Summer Shake 82,700 82,551 75,600
Women's Ministries 9,000 4,838 14,000
Young Adults 16,519 9,894 16,555
Young Marrieds 750 - 750

$ 413,153 $ 371,235 $ 393,045
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH

BUDGETED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Unaudited Unaudited
Budget Actual Budget

2018 2017 2017

SCHEDULE Q - BUILDING
Building and equipment maintenance $ 128,624 $ 121,169 $ 100,000
Cleaning 82,000 75,210 82,000
Heat 16,000 12,693 16,000
Hydro 86,000 78,040 86,000
Insurance 8,000 6,227 6,800
Property taxes - 2,334 -
Water 16,000 15,959 16,000

$ 336,624 $ 311,632 $ 306,800

SCHEDULE R - MISSIONARY OUTREACH
Communication and administration $ 100 $ 76 $ 100
Full time support 135,200 142,640 144,440
Honorariums and travel 2,400 850 2,400
Hospitality 500 20 500
Humanitarian 25,000 14,500 22,000
Miscellaneous - designated 15,000 16,380 15,000
Short term missions - 38,045 32,000
Special projects 64,800 57,425 73,156

$ 243,000 $ 269,936 $ 289,596
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of
Woodvale Pentecostal Church Property Corporation

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Woodvale Pentecostal Church Property
Corporation, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017,  and the
statements of operations, net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

.../2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Woodvale Pentecostal Church Property Corporation as at December 31, 2017, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations.

Other Matters 

The financial statements of Woodvale Pentecostal Church Property Corporation for the year ended
December 31, 2016 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unqualified opinion on those
statements on March 6, 2017.

McCay Duff LLP,
Licensed Public Accountants.

Ottawa, Ontario,
March 6, 2018.

3



WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH PROPERTY CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

ASSETS
2017 2016

CURRENT
Cash (note 4) $ 6,915 $ 1,077
HST receivable 61,175 1,375
Security Deposit - City of Ottawa 50,000 50,000

118,090 52,452

PARKING LOT UNDER CONSTRUCTION - 54,190

CAPITAL (note 5) 10,234,310 9,754,392

$ 10,352,400 $ 9,861,034

LIABILITIES

CURRENT
Grid demand note payable (note 4) $ 375,000 $ 50,000
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,502 5,002
Mortgage payable (note 6) 3,295,165 3,613,536

3,673,667 3,668,538

DUE TO WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH (note 7) 271,854 133,857

DUE TO WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH
CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION (note 7) 95,681 17,970

4,041,202 3,820,365
NET ASSETS

BALANCE - END OF YEAR 6,311,198 6,040,669

$ 10,352,400 $ 9,861,034

Approved on behalf of the Board:

Director Director
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH PROPERTY CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016

BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 6,040,669 $ 5,720,966

Net revenue for the year 270,529 319,703

BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 6,311,198 $ 6,040,669
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH PROPERTY CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
    Unaudited

Budget Actual Actual

REVENUE
Building fund revenue $ - $ 200 $ -
Donation from Woodvale Pentecostal Church 434,362 639,847 704,533
Interest Income 500 796 691
Licensing Fee 28,800 28,800 28,800

463,662 669,643 734,024

EXPENSES
Amortization - 259,732 259,836
Hydro land lease and taxes 35,723 31,020 31,539
Insurance 20,500 16,996 15,595
Interest and bank charges 11,267 5,541 3,556
Interest on mortgage payable 78,249 81,479 94,654
Interest on note payable - - 4,256
Professional fees 5,500 4,346 4,885

151,239 399,114 414,321

NET REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $ 312,423 $ 270,529 $ 319,703
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH PROPERTY CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017 2016
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net revenue for the year $ 270,529 $ 319,703

Item not requiring an outlay of cash:
- amortization 259,732 259,836

530,261 579,539

Changes in non-cash working capital
- HST receivable ( )59,801 ( )132
- accounts payable and accrued liabilities ( )1,498 -

468,962 579,407

INVESTING ACTIVITY
Purchase of capital assets ( )685,460 ( )173,238

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net change in grid demand loan 325,000 ( )100,000
Repayment of mortgage payable ( )318,372 ( )307,599
Change in due to Woodvale Pentecostal Church 137,997 -
Change in Due to Woodvale Pentecostal Church

Construction Corporation 77,711 -

222,336 ( )407,599

CHANGE IN CASH DURING THE YEAR 5,838 ( )1,430

Cash - beginning of year 1,077 2,507

CASH - END OF YEAR $ 6,915 $ 1,077
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH PROPERTY CORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

1. ORGANIZATION

Woodvale Pentecostal Church Property Corporation was incorporated without share capital under
Part II of the Canada Corporations Act on May 24, 2006 and was continued under the Canada Not-
for-Profit Corporations Act on May 23, 2014.  The purpose of the Property Corporation is to hold
property for the worship of Almighty God and related facilities in accordance with the beliefs,
practice and general charitable purposes of Woodvale Pentecostal Church. The Property
Corporation is a registered charity and exempt from income taxes.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations. The Property Corporation’s significant accounting policies are as follows:

(a) Revenue Recognition

The Property Corporation follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses
are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or
receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is
reasonably assured.

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are incurred. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when
earned.

(b) Financial Instruments

The Property Corporation’s financial instruments consist of cash, HST receivable, grid
demand note payable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, mortgage payable, due to
Woodvale Pentecostal Church, and due to Woodvale Pentecostal Church Construction
Company.

Measurement

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition.

The Property Corporation subsequently measures all of its financial instruments at amortized
cost.

Impairment

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are tested for impairment when there are
indicators of impairment. The amount of any write-down or subsequent recovery is
recognized in net revenue for the year
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH PROPERTY CORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd.)

(c) Capital Assets and Amortization

Capital assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided
as follows:

Building 50 Years Straight line basis
Equipment 5 Years Straight line basis
Parking Lot 20 Years Straight line basis

One-half of the above rates are recorded in the year of acquisition.

(d) Volunteer Services

The Property Corporation receives the services of many volunteers, the cost of which cannot
be reasonably estimated.  Therefore, no representation of this expenditure has been included
in these financial statements.

(e) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities.  These estimates are reviewed periodically and adjustments
are made to net revenue as appropriate in the year they become known.

3. FINANCIAL RISKS AND CONCENTRATION OF RISKS

It is management’s assessment that the Property Corporation is not exposed to significant market,
currency or credit risks arising from its financial instruments. There has been no change to the risk
exposure from 2016. 

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Property Corporation will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a
timely basis or at a reasonable cost. The Property Corporation is exposed to liquidity risk on its
mortgage payable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The Property Corporation manages
its liquidity risk by monitoring its operating requirements.  The Property Corporation prepares
budget and cash forecasts to ensure it has sufficient funds to fulfill its obligations. There has been
no change to the risk exposure from 2016. 
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH PROPERTY CORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

3. FINANCIAL RISKS AND CONCENTRATION OF RISKS (Cont'd.)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the exposure of the Property Corporation's earnings that arises from fluctuations
in interest rates. The Property Corporation is exposed to significant interest risk on its mortgage
payable. The Property Corporation maintains its repayment obligations to reduce this exposure.
There has been no change to the risk exposure from 2016. 

4. CASH AND BANKING AGREEMENTS

The Property Corporation's bank accounts are held at one chartered bank.

As at December 31, 2017 the Property Corporation has available to it a maximum of $200,000 in
the form of an operating line of credit bearing interest at the bank's prime rate of interest plus
0.5%. At December 31, 2017 the outstanding balance of the operating line of credit is $nil (2016 -
$nil).

The Property Corporation also has available to it a standby letter of credit to a maximum of
$13,700 with commission payable at 2% per annum calculated on the issued amount. At December
31, 2017 the entire amount of the standby letter of credit remains unused (2016 - $nil).

The Property Corporation has available a $50,000 business credit card with an interest rate and
repayment terms outlined in a cardholder agreement.

The Property Corporation also has available to it a $400,000 grid demand loan bearing interest at
the bank's prime rate of interest plus 0.5%. At December 31, 2017 the outstanding balance of this
loan is $375,000 (2016 - $50,000).

As collateral for the credit facilities and the mortgage, the Property Corporation has provided the
lender with a General Security Agreement providing a charge on all present and future assets, the
assignment of builders' all risk insurance, general assignment of rents, collateral mortgage on the
property and guarantees from both Woodvale Pentecostal Church and Woodvale Pentecostal
Church Construction Corporation.

The agreement governing the above mentioned liabilities contains certain covenants regarding
earnings to debt coverage and net worth tests. The Property Corporation is compliant with both
tests.
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH PROPERTY CORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

5. CAPITAL ASSETS
2017 2016

Cost
Accumulated
Amortization Net Net

Land $ 134,657 $ - $ 134,657 $ 134,657
Buildings 12,112,197 2,689,235 9,422,962 9,610,474
Equipment 26,927 26,927 - -
Parking lot 703,330 26,639 676,691 9,261

$ 12,977,111 $ 2,742,801 $ 10,234,310 $ 9,754,392

6. MORTGAGE PAYABLE
2017 2016

Mortgage payable, secured by a general security
agreement, a collateral charge registered to Scotiabank
and guarantees from Woodvale Pentecostal Church and
Woodvale Pentecostal Church Construction Corporation
bearing interest at 2.25% annually, repayable in monthly
instalments of $33,521 principal and interest, due May 27,
2018. $ 3,295,165 $ 3,613,536

Current portion 3,295,165 3,613,536

$ - $ -

7. RELATED PARTIES AND ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Property Corporation is related to Woodvale Pentecostal Church and Woodvale Pentecostal
Church Construction Corporation through significant influence exerted by the Church. The
Property Corporation provides facility services to Woodvale Pentecostal Church as a charitable
service to the members of the Church. The Property Corporation is economically dependent on
Woodvale Pentecostal Church for revenue sources, the Church currently provides 100% of the
Property Corporation's revenue sources through donations made to the corporation. Woodvale
Pentecostal Church and the Property Corporation are registered as Associated Charities with the
Canadian Revenue Agency for income tax purposes.

The amounts owing between the related parties are non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of
repayment. The amounts relate to expenses paid on behalf of the Property Corporation by the
related parties and are recorded at cost.

During the year, Woodvale Pentecostal Church provided a donation to the Property Corporation in
the amount of $639,847 (2016 - $704,533).

McCAY DUFF LLP, CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS 11



WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH PROPERTY CORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

8. BUDGET INFORMATION

The budget figures presented for comparison purposes are unaudited and are those approved by
management. They have been reclassified to conform with the financial statement presentation.
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2017
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NOTICE TO READER

On the basis of information provided by management, we have compiled the statement of financial

position of Woodvale Pentecostal Church Construction Corporation as at December 31, 2017 and the

statements of operations and changes in net assets for the year then ended.  We have not performed an

audit or a review engagement in respect of these financial statements and, accordingly, we express no

assurance thereon.  Readers are cautioned that these statements may not be appropriate for their

purposes. 

McCay Duff LLP,
Licensed Public Accountants.

Ottawa, Ontario, 
March 6, 2018.
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

UNAUDITED - SEE NOTICE TO READER

ASSETS
2017 2016

CURRENT
Cash $ 1,034 $ 945
HST receivable 17 108
Due from Woodvale Pentecostal Church Property

Corporation 95,681 17,970

$ 96,732 $ 19,023

LIABILITIES

CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 2,000 $ 1,400
Due to Woodvale Pentecostal Church 110,293 31,793

112,293 33,193
NET ASSETS

BALANCE (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR ( )15,561 ( )14,170

$ 96,732 $ 19,023

Approved on behalf of the Board:

Director Director
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

UNAUDITED - SEE NOTICE TO READER

2017 2016

BALANCE (DEFICIT) - BEGINNING OF YEAR $( )14,170 $( )12,581

Net expenses for the year ( )1,391 ( )1,589

BALANCE (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR $( )15,561 $( )14,170
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WOODVALE PENTECOSTAL CHURCH CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

UNAUDITED - SEE NOTICE TO READER

2017 2016

REVENUE $ 824 $ -

EXPENSES
Interest and bank charges 140 142
Professional fees 2,075 1,447

2,215 1,589

NET EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $( )1,391 $( )1,589
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